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Reference and administrative information

The Garfield Weston Foundation is a general grant-giving charity endowed by the late W Garfield 
Weston and members of his family, which is registered with the Central Register of Charities, 
registration number 230260. The Foundation is recognised by the HM Revenue and Customs 
as an approved charity for tax purposes, the reference number being X96978. 
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£91
million

AA/ 
AAA

New website launched 
that exceeds 
accessibility standards

Extensive independent 
survey of applicants 
conducted with over
1,300 respondents

Total donations over 
£91 million to 
charities across the 
country

2,147 individual grants 
made across the UK
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million donated to Community charities
Over
£9.5

of applicants applied to the Foundation for the first time
Over
30%

453 grants made to 
charities in the north 
of England

£33.4 million donated 
to Youth, Welfare and 
Community charities  
across the UK

A record for Environmental charities£12.2
million 

donated to Welfare charities
Over

£15.4
million

donated to charities supporting homelessness
Over
£1.8
million



Chair’s introduction 
As the Chair of the Foundation, I am pleased 
to introduce the Annual Report of the 
Trustees for the year to 5 April 2023.

The Foundation is a family founded grant-
maker, endowed by my grandfather in 1958. 
In accordance with his wishes the 
Foundation’s Trustees are his descendants, 
and we are proud to be stewards of the 
commitment which he made to the charity 
sector in the UK, and which has enabled us 
to grow donations each year to charities 
across the country. We believe strongly in 
the power of philanthropic institutions that 
can take a long-term time horizon as we 
know that many charities value funding from 
organisations like the Foundation to deliver 
their vital work across the UK and that this 
support can be challenging to secure.

We build long-term and thoughtful 
relationships with our grantees, working 
closely with them through good times and 
more difficult times. We have a clearly 
articulated grant-making philosophy which 
focuses on our core values of respect, 
humility and trust. We work in a 
straightforward and transparent way. For 
example, we seek to make our application 

process as straightforward as possible, 
allowing charities to devote more time to 
their work, not fundraising. We ask for 
simple annual grant reports that focus on 
key outcomes so we can learn from them, 
rather than overburdening charities with 
complex and bespoke reporting. We are 
flexible – we can fund a specific project, but 
equally we can and do make grants for core 
costs, recognising that our grantees know 
best how to help their beneficiaries and 
communities, not us. We do not 
predetermine funds by geography or sector; 
instead responding to what grantees tell us 
they need.

We continue to have ambitious plans for the 
coming year as we seek to increase our 
grants and I am excited to see the continued 
difference which the Foundation can make 
to our grantees.

I and my fellow Trustees once again extend 
our sincere thanks to the Director and her 
team for their hard work over the previous 
year and their forward-thinking, flexible and 
sensitive approach as we move forward with 
our exciting plans. 

Sir Guy H Weston
Chair of the Trustees

9 October 2023
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Trustees’ report

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the accounting 
policies set out in the notes to the accounts 
and comply with the charity’s governing 
document, the Charities Act 2011 and 
Accounting and Reporting by Charities: 
Statement of Recommended Practice 
applicable to charities preparing their 
accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland published on 16 July 
2014 (FRS102). 

Structure, governance and 
management 

Structure

The operation of the Foundation is governed 
by a Trust Deed dated 10 October 1958.

At 5 April 2023, the Foundation owned 
79.2% of Wittington Investments Limited, a 
company registered in England. Wittington 
Investments is the ultimate holding company 
of Associated British Foods plc, which is 
listed on the London Stock Exchange, 
Fortnum and Mason plc and Heal’s plc. 
Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the 
investment in the Wittington Investments 
Limited group of companies forms the 
permanent capital endowment of the 
Foundation and the Trustees may not 
dispose of that investment except by a 
unanimous vote of all the Trustees. 

Governance and management

In accordance with the Trust Deed, after the 
death of Mr W Garfield Weston and his wife, 
their descendants became Trustees. The 
number of Trustees is limited to ten but must 
be at least five. If the number of Trustees 
drops below five, new Trustees fall to be 
appointed from among the lineal 
descendants of W Garfield Weston. 

Being family members, incoming Trustees 
are aware of the aims and objectives of the 

Foundation and the manner in which the 
Trustees carry out their responsibilities. 
Nearly all of the Trustees are on the board of 
other charitable entities either in the UK, the 
United States or Canada. The Foundation is 
a member of the Foundations Forum and the 
Association of Charitable Foundations and 
also receives the main charities’ journals. 
This ensures that the Trustees are well 
placed to keep up to date with developments 
in charity practice and regulations. In 
addition, the Trustees receive direct 
information in relation to important areas 
from both their Secretary, who attends 
monthly meetings and is a practising lawyer 
with expertise in the charity sector, and from 
their auditors UHY Hacker Young LLP. 

The Trustees are directly responsible for the 
management of the Foundation and hold 
regular meetings in order to consider grant 
applications for £100,000 or more and to 
ratify smaller grants which have been made 
since their previous meeting. Additional 
meetings are included as required to deal 
with any time-sensitive funding requests. 
The initial processing of grant applications is 
dealt with by an experienced team of staff, 
but every application is seen by at least one 
of the Trustees who also actively participate 
in meetings with, and visits to, applicants. 
The Trustees also hold an annual meeting in 
order to adopt the Annual Report and 
Accounts and to carry out a formal review of 
the fulfilment of the Foundation’s aims and 
objectives, policies and the investment 
performance over the year.  

Risk management and policies

The Trustees are satisfied that appropriate 
policies, protection, systems and checks 
remain in place in order to mitigate exposure 
to major risks and to ensure that the 
Foundation operates in accordance with 
ethical and environmental guidelines and 
protections. The Director and Secretary 
review operational risks and policies on an 
ongoing basis and these are formally 
considered by the Trustees at their Annual 
Meeting.
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The principal risks relate to investment 
performance, and operational risks in terms 
of grant-making arising from system 
malfunctions or fraudulent applications. 
There is also a reputational risk for the 
Foundation in terms of its relationship with 
the underlying trading activities of 
companies held through Wittington 
Investments Limited. 

Operational: the computer system and 
internal procedures, including authorised 
signatories, are regularly updated and 
reviewed and all grant applicants are 
screened by a skilled grants administration 
team. During the course of the year the 
arrangements whereby staff are seconded to 
the Foundation from Wittington Investments 
Limited have been reviewed and updated to 
ensure that they comply with all statutory 
and ethical requirements, including, but not 
limited to, those under the Data Protection 
Act 2018 and the Modern Slavery Act 2015, 
to address EDI-related issues and to provide 
safeguarding for staff and applicants. 

Investments: the Trustees regularly review 
the performance of the underlying assets 
and their shareholding in the Wittington 
Investments Limited group and receive 
reports directly from those who are 
managing the businesses. The non-
Wittington investments are also managed in 
accordance with a policy which balances risk 
with investment returns (see below). 

Reputation: the direct involvement of 
members of the Trustee board in the 
activities of the Wittington group also 
enables them to be fully appraised of events 
which might give rise to unwelcome media 
attention and hence reputational risks. 

Conflicts of interest: the Trustees have in 
place a detailed policy regarding conflicts of 
interest, both in terms of their grant-making 
decisions, and also in terms of the fact that 
some of them are directors of Wittington 
group companies; this potential for conflict is 
carefully managed with proper procedures 
(including as regards the exercise of the 
Trustees’ voting powers at the Wittington 

Investments Limited AGM and any other 
shareholder meetings) and the taking of 
independent advice where necessary.

Ethical and environment: as well as 
implementing their own policies to protect 
the environment (for example, nearly all 
applications are made online and the 
Trustees receive meeting papers 
electronically, thus reducing the need for 
paper and printing and facilitating remote 
working), the Trustees also keep under 
scrutiny the ethical and environmental 
practices as carried out by the underlying 
businesses in the Wittington group and their 
independent investment managers. In 
relation to its staff secondees, the 
Foundation adheres to the practices laid 
down by Wittington Investments Limited and 
Associated British Foods in connection with 
the Modern Slavery Act and corporate 
responsibility – for more details see  
www.wittington-investments.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/
ModernSlaveryHumanTrafficking
Statement2023.pdf
www.abf.co.uk/responsibility

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion: the Trustees 
are committed to inclusion in our society; 
addressing disadvantage and ‘levelling the 
playing field’ for all has been a central theme 
of the Foundation for over six decades as the 
Foundation values diversity in its widest 
sense. The Foundation aims to be 
accessible, transparent and straightforward 
in its approach to grant-making and actively 
supports charities which in turn support 
diverse groups and communities, including 
those suffering discrimination in all its 
forms. The Trustees and staff are committed 
to inclusion and discussion on EDI is 
continuous to ensure our commitment is 
embedded on a daily basis. The Trustees 
continue to monitor the diversity of the 
Foundation’s staff team and the Foundation 
has a EDI champion who has knowledge and 
lived experience of EDI issues. 

Safeguarding: the Trustees have a 
safeguarding policy which is aimed at 
protecting their own staff as well as 
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vulnerable beneficiaries. The Trustees also 
require grant applicants to confirm that they 
have appropriate safeguarding policies in 
place to protect their staff, volunteers and 
beneficiaries.  

Income and grant-making aims 
and objectives

The Trust Deed contains broad charitable 
objects which allow the Trustees, at their 
discretion, to pay or apply the income and, 
subject to certain restrictions, the capital of 
the Trust Fund to or for the benefit of any 
charitable bodies, trusts, associations, 
institutions or organisations. 

Despite the continuing challenges and 
fluctuations in share prices and dividend 
levels, total income receipts for the year rose 
to just over £90 million (2022: £84 million). 
The Trustees have once again been able to 
draw on prudent levels of income reserves to 
make total grants of over £91.14 million in 
support of 2,147 appeals (2022: £89.88 
million in support of 1,988 appeals). 

The total outstanding forward commitments 
at the end of the financial year were just over 
£52.5 million as compared with just over 
£48 million in 2022. Commitments consist 
of future payments of £18 million (2022: 
£22 million) due to charities under existing 
multi-year grant arrangements, and pledges 
of just over £20 million (2022: £26.1 
million) that require charities to fulfil specific 
prerequisite obligations. The increase in 
future payments reflects a concerted effort 
on the part of the Trustees over the past year 
to make longer-term grant commitments 
given the pressures of inflation. The 
Trustees’ aim is that pledges should not 
exceed 20% of their annual projected 
expenditure, but the current figure includes 
an outstanding significant pledge of £8 
million to Moorfields Eye Hospital for a new 
centre for advancing eye health (which the 
Trustees felt was important to support at an 
early stage in order to encourage support 
from other donors), so the balance is 
comfortably within the Trustees’ target.

While the Trustees were pleased to be able 
to make some substantial grants for key 
capital projects, including £2 million to 
Addenbrooke’s Charitable Trust for the new 
Cambridge Children’s Hospital and grants 
exceeding £1 million for a number of 
medical, educational and environmental 
projects, charities remain comparatively 
cautious in terms of undertaking capital 
projects and, where these were in 
contemplation prior to the pandemic, the 
overall costs of completing the same have 
risen considerably. The Trustees have 
therefore done their best to assist with 
shortfalls and enable such projects finally to 
move towards completion. The Trustees have 
also continued to provide support for the 
core costs of charities which are still 
suffering from the effects of the Covid-19 
pandemic, as well as the rising costs of 
inflation. See the Director’s Report and full 
list of grants made for more details. 

Grant-making policy

The Foundation continues to accept only 
appeals from UK registered charities. No 
applications from individuals are considered 
and the Trustees do not typically fund 
projects outside the UK, nor do they fund 
animal charities, unless for the purpose of 
supporting a specific environmental project 
or where the main beneficiary is people, 
such as providing assistance for those with 
disabilties. 

The Trustees’ aim is to keep the application 
process as simple and streamlined as 
possible. Step-by-step guidelines as to how 
to make a grant application (more than 95% 
of which are now submitted online), together 
with helpful details of the criteria which are 
taken into consideration when assessing 
applications and the information which 
should be submitted with an application, are 
available on the Foundation’s website 
www.garfieldweston.org

These guidelines are also published in Welsh 
(although applications from Welsh charities 
must still be made in English).
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All applications are considered on an 
individual basis; the Trustees do not consider 
funding requests made within 12 months of 
the outcome of a previous application, but, 
in relation to funding for core costs, they will 
consider providing funds to be spread over a 
period of years. Whenever possible, visits 
are made by Trustees and/or the Director or 
one of the other members of the 
Foundation’s grants team in order to gain a 
better understanding of applicants’ 
requirements. Regular contact is maintained 
with recipients of grants for monitoring 
purposes, while also taking care to minimise 
the burden on the recipient charities. 

In order to provide further transparency in 
the grant-making process, the Foundation 
publishes its grants through 360Giving. It 
also commissions independent reviews of 
grant-giving initiatives in order to assess 
their effectiveness and to improve the 
experience for both successful and 
unsuccessful applicants. These findings are 
published and shared openly and made 
accessible on the website; the most recent 
report from nfpResearch was published in 
July 2023. 

Public benefit
The Trustees have complied with section 
2(1)(b) of the Charities Act 2011, having due 
regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance 
on public benefit when reviewing the 
Foundation’s aims and objectives, when 
setting the grant-making policy and in 
making awards. 

Achievements and performance

Despite the current economic uncertainty, 
Wittington Investments Limited has 
managed to increase its dividend payments 
to the Foundation so that the Foundation 
has been able to continue to provide funding 
of just over £91.14 million across a broad 
range of charitable purposes at a time when 
the sector, and those whom it supports, 
continue to be in need. 

Some of the valuable charities and projects 
which have been funded by the Foundation 

are described in more detail in the Director’s 
Report at page 12.  

Investment performance

The Trustees are satisfied that the 
investment structure (represented by the 
Wittington group of companies) which was 
contributed by our grandfather to the 
Foundation remains a sustainable long-term 
model, particularly in terms of providing a 
regular and reliable income stream to enable 
the Foundation to fulfil its charitable 
purposes. The value of the group of 
companies (which is directly attributable to 
the share price of Associated British Foods) 
continues to fluctuate in line with equity 
markets generally, but the Trustees remain 
confident that any such fluctuations will not 
have a lasting effect on their ability to 
provide support to grant applicants.

It should be noted that in each financial year 
for the Foundation there is not a direct 
correlation between the amounts which 
Wittington pays by way of dividends and the 
amounts which are received by the Trustees 
by reference to their percentage 
shareholding; this is owing to the fact that 
the two entities have different accounting 
year ends. 

As at 5 April 2023, the Investec portfolio was 
valued at over £72.4 million (2022: £77.7  
million). Performance net of fees at -4.5% 
was below the benchmark of RPI plus 4% 
(+17.9%), but the Trustees recognise the 
challenges posed by this benchmark in the 
current period of inflation.

Moreover the portfolio outperformed the 
ARC (Asset Risk Consultants) Charity Steady 
Growth Index (the average volatility of which 
is similar to that of the portfolio), over the 
year to 5 April 2023 with a loss (net of fees) 
of 4.5% as compared with a loss of +4.8% 
for the Index. The annual income 
distributions to the Foundation from the 
Investec portfolio totalled £2 milion. 

The Oxford University Endowment 
Management (OUem) fund offers an 
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alternative form of investment in a broad 
range of asset classes, focusing on real 
returns in excess of inflation and therefore 
fits well within the Trustees’ benchmark of 
RPI plus 4%. The three year annualised 
return to 31 March 2023 for the fund as a 
whole was 11.1% and was well above the 
fund’s objective of CPI+5%. The distribution 
policy of OUem is to pay an annual 
distribution of 4.25% of the fund’s NAV over 
the past 20 quarters which is estimated to 
yield just over £1 million per annum for the 
Foundation.

The capital value of the Savills’ Charities 
Property Fund was £5.99 million as at 5 
April 2023 (2022: £6.93m), with an income 
yield of 4%.

Further analysis of the investment assets 
can be found in Note 9 to the Financial 
Statements. A copy of Wittington 
Investments Limited’s accounts for the year 
to 17 September 2023 can be obtained 
from Companies House. 

Financial review

In accordance with required accounting 
policy, grants are recognised in the 
statement of financial activities when 
approved by the Trustees and communicated 
to the recipients, irrespective of the future 
period over which payments are to be made, 
and the obligations outstanding at the year 
end are recognised as creditors.

Costs

These continue to be very low in relation to 
the levels of income and donations made 
and are kept under review by the Director 
and Trustees to ensure they remain lean as 
a proportion of grant expenditure.

Reserves

The Trustees’ policy is to maintain reserves 
of approximately 50% of the Foundation’s 
annual income bearing in mind the general 
timing of income receipts, their general 
pattern of giving and the current economic 
climate. Total income reserves at the end of 

the year were £24.1 million and this will be 
taken into account when assessing levels of 
grant-making for the following financial year.

Investment objectives
The Trustees’ investment objectives in 
relation to their non-Wittington group assets 
as set out in the policy statement are to 
preserve the absolute value of the capital, 
whilst maintaining its ‘real’ value.

This involves adopting a relatively 
conservative investment strategy, investing 
in a balanced portfolio without geographical, 
currency or sector restriction, subject to the 
terms of a Charity Commission Order dated 
19 September 2001. The primary 
benchmark for investment performance 
remains at RPI plus 4% over a rolling three 
year period, although comparison is also 
made on an annual basis with the ARC 
(Asset Risk Consultants) Charity Steady 
Growth Index for Investec and, in the case of 
OUem, the MSCI All Country World Index. 

The Trustees are satisfied that the two 
investment managers have suitable policies 
in place regarding their stock selection to 
ensure that this complies with the latest ESG 
practices and they continue to keep this 
under review. The Trustees’ principal 
investment, namely Associated British Foods 
plc, is a highly diversified global company 
with an extensive and practical approach to 
responsible business. The Trustees have a 
direct line of sight into this business, making 
the Foundation’s approach to responsible 
investment more transparent and with a 
higher degree of clarity than other models 
might afford.

Plans for future periods

Rising levels of inflation continue to have a 
significant impact on all areas of the sector, 
but with particular significance for charities 
which support the poorest and most 
vulnerable in our society as well as for those 
undertaking capital projects. The Foundation 
will continue to do its best to react to the 
changing needs of the charitable sector and 
to provide support where it is most needed 
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and can most effectively be utilised to make 
a difference.

The Trustees will continue to maintain our 
ability to respond promptly and effectively to 
the requests in support of a broad range of 
charitable causes, relying upon the 
consistent performance of the Foundation’s 
investment endowment and prudent income 
reserves. 

Trustees’ responsibilities for the 
financial statements

The Trustees are responsible for preparing 
the Trustees’ Annual Report and the 
financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England 
and Wales requires the Trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year 
which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the charity and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources of 
the charity for that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the Trustees are 
required to:

■ select suitable accounting policies and 
then apply them consistently

■ observe the methods and principles in 
the Charities SORP

■ make judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent

■ state whether applicable accounting 
standards and statements of 
recommended practice have been 
followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the 
financial statements

■ prepare the financial statements on the 
going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the charity 
will continue in operation

The Trustees are responsible for keeping 
proper records which disclose with 

reasonable accuracy the financial position of 
the charity and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the 
Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts 
and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the 
provisions of the Trust Deed. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the charity’s 
assets and hence taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
breaches of law and regulations. 

The Trustees are responsible for the 
maintenance and integrity of the charity and 
financial information included on the 
charity’s website. Legislation in the United 
Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may 
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Sir Guy H Weston
Chair of the Trustees

Sophia Weston
Deputy Chair of Trustees

9 October 2023
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Director’s report 
It’s been another exciting year at the 
Foundation with donations increasing on 
last year and a record number of grants 
made across the country. With flexibility 
and responsiveness being at the heart of 
our strategy, the Trustees made an 
increased level of core costs grants, 
reflecting the challenging circumstances for 
many charities as they wrestle with growing 
demand and rising costs, while fundraising 
is squeezed by inflationary issues.

The Trustees’ grants this year placed 
particular emphasis on smaller, grassroots 
charities and our community-oriented grants 
totalled £9.5 million, an increase of almost 
40% on the previous year. Examples of 
grassroots charities include Together 
Dementia Support which provides vital help 
to people living with dementia and their 
family carers in the Manchester area, and 
The Matthew Project social enterprise 
programme which gives beneficiaries in 
Norwich opportunities to change their lives 
and to generate income for the charity. We 
were pleased that 37% of applicants in the 
Community category applied to us for the 
first time, which reflected the work we have 
been doing to be as accessible and visible 
as possible to those who may not know us 
already. We plan to continue this activity 
vigorously and make continued use of 
webinars and technology to reach those who 
need us. 

Alongside core costs grants and donations 
for key projects and activities, the Trustees 
also continued to invest in the future by 
supporting a range of capital projects, 
consciously balancing immediate need with 
longer-term investments. Post-pandemic, 
there has been an increase in capital 
projects in the Health sector in particular 
and the Trustees made a number of major 
grants in this area. These included £2 
million to Addenbrooke’s Charitable Trust for 
the new Cambridge Children’s Hospital, the 

first dedicated children’s hospital in the east 
of England; £300,000 to Alder Hey 
Children’s Charity for its Surgical Neonatal 
Appeal; and £250,000 to the University of 
Sheffield for its Gene Therapy Innovation and 
Manufacturing Centre.

Health and wellbeing are increasingly in the 
spotlight as the effects emerge of recent 
uncertainties. The work of mental health 
charities has never been more in demand 
and, reflecting that, the Trustees made 
grants of more than £2.7 million in this area 
during 2022/23, an increase of 50% on the 
previous year. From local organisations such 
as Youth Talk in St Albans, to those with 
national reach such as Place2Be and the 
national network of Minds, all are providing 
practical support when people need it most. 
The innovative approach of Mental Health 
Innovation’s Shout project, using text 
messaging to provide practical 24/7 mental 
health support, particularly impressed the 
Trustees. Other grants in the health and 
wellbeing area included Tenovus Cancer 
Care, to fund its mobile chemotherapy units; 
Changing Faces for its life-changing support 
for people with a scar, mark or condition that 
makes them look different; and Refuge, the 
UK’s largest domestic abuse charity.

Another record was in our Environment 
category, reflecting the ever more pressing 
need to protect our natural world, and the 
Trustees were delighted to grant £12.2 
million this year. The Foundation continued 
its long-term partnerships with several 
organisations such as Oceana, with a grant 
of £1 million over 5 years towards its work 
protecting and restoring the waters around 
the UK; and a major investment of £5 million 
to the Royal Botanic Gardens, Kew 
continuing our support for the Garfield 
Weston Global Tree Seed Bank, a project 
with global significance.

In addition to larger organisations, the 
Trustees were keen to make grants to 
smaller projects that involve local 
communities in caring for their environment. 
The Open University’s ‘Living Lab’ in Milton 
Keynes is involving people in conservation to 

12  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2023



create nature-based recovery solutions, and 
University of Surrey’s ‘Space4Nature’ project 
combines satellite and AI technology 
alongside ‘citizen science’ to provide robust 
habitat data. In Wales, the Trustees granted 
£150,000 towards Keep Wales Tidy’s 
important project to address waste and fly-
tipping in the areas most affected. 

Alongside our grant-making, we also 
undertook several strategic projects to 
ensure we continually improve the way we 
work. We completely revamped the 
foundation’s website which, already praised 
for its clarity and straightforward approach, 
is now even better with every section being 
either AA or AAA rated for accessibility. The 
new website supports our long-standing 
work to be transparent and clear and to help 
charities make their best case for 
support. The refreshed website is also a 
crucial step in transitioning to a new 
database behind the scenes, which we will 
be implementing in the coming year, aiming 
to deliver improved reporting capabilities 
while maintaining good records.

Towards the end of the financial year, we 
also commissioned an independent and 
extensive survey of applicants to understand 
their experience better, to inform where we 
can make improvements and to ensure we 
continue doing the things that applicants 
need and want. The findings from over 
1,300 responses were made public in July, 
and we look forward to working on the ideas 
and suggestions the feedback elicited.

We are proud of our partnerships with great 
charities and have highlighted a small 
selection of our partners on the following 
pages to offer a flavour of what we have 
been doing, we hope you enjoy reading 
about them. We are also keen to encourage 
new charities to apply so please do spread 
this message as we know that word of 
mouth is a powerful way for people to find 
out about us.

I’d like to finish by thanking the small but 
very dedicated team of staff at the 
Foundation for their hard work, skill and care 

and also the Trustees for their insight, 
thoughtful approach and passion for 
supporting our amazing charity partners. 
Now we turn our attention to the year ahead 
as there is still much to do and we relish the 
opportunity to strengthen existing 
partnerships and forge new ones.

Philippa Charles
Director
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The Royal Botanic Gardens, Kew

Project grant, Environment
The Global Tree Seed Bank at Royal Botanic 
Gardens, Kew was established in 2014 with 
the aim to conserve the world’s most 
important tree species, which are 
increasingly under threat from deforestation, 
over exploitation, climate change, pests and 
diseases. The Foundation has a long-
standing relationship and the Garfield 
Weston Global Tree Seed Bank has 
conserved 5,000 woody species from 40 
countries, a range of research projects have 
been carried out, as well as conservation 
skills building programmes with the project’s 
global partners.

The next phase of the project will use the 
resources held in the Seed Bank to 
significantly enhance conservation efforts in 
countries around the world. In this phase the 
project will restore forests in six countries 
facing significant deforestation threats; 
conserve at least a further 500 of the rarest, 
most endangered or most vital tree species; 

deliver cutting edge research into the climate 
resilience of threatened trees that has the 
potential to save trees on the brink of 
extinction; and build in-country tree 
conservation capacity by boosting the supply 
of native tree seeds, training native 
conservationists and improving in-country 
seed banking facilities. The Trustees were 
delighted to grant £5 million to fund phase 
three of this essential work.
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The urgency of the task in front of us is clear, we need 
to accelerate the pace of conservation globally if we 
are to meet the twin challenges of biodiversity loss and 
climate change. Investment such as this from the 
Garfield Weston Foundation is transformational. 
Already it has allowed us to build a globally unique 
asset which will safeguard many of the world’s rarest 
and most threatened trees for decades, if not 
centuries, to come.

Richard Deverell, Director



University of Surrey

Project grant, Environment
Surrey has one of the fastest-declining 
wildlife populations of any county in England. 
Over 620 species have already become 
extinct in Surrey and a further 972 species 
are in decline. Currently there is no system in 
place to gather, verify and publish good 
habitat data which means that many 
organisations and sectors develop individual 
approaches which lack cohesion. 
Space4Nature is a pioneering project, led by 
the University of Surrey in partnership with 
Surrey Wildlife Trust, Buglife and the 
Painshill Park Trust, to revolutionise how 
habitats are monitored. The project 
combines satellite imagery and artificial 
intelligence to develop and automate 
detailed remote habitat mapping software, 
providing robust data to inform conservation 
programmes. Alongside this technology, 
Surrey Wildlife Trust and Buglife will train 
volunteers to become citizen scientists 
including school children who will help 
assess the accuracy of the technology on 
the ground. Their observational data will be 
incorporated into highly detailed habitat 
maps, which will be made publicly available 
for free. If successful, this innovative 
approach has the potential to be scaled and

used globally to map habitat data. The 
Foundation’s grant of £200,000 will help 
map, protect and restore wildlife and 
diversity across Surrey and hopes to provide 
a high-quality basis for expanding across 
regions and countries.

Garfield Weston Foundation  15

The support we have received from 
Garfield Weston Foundation for our 
Space4Nature project allows us to 
use innovative technology – Earth 
Observation satellites and artificial 
intelligence - to demonstrate how we 
can protect and restore key habitats 
in the UK. Garfield Weston’s support 
will mean we can boost biodiversity 
in wetland areas, which are 
particularly sensitive to climate 
change, and urban and peri-urban 
areas, where habitats are often 
encroached by roads and buildings.

Professor Richard Murphy, Director of 
the Centre for Environment and 
Sustainability



16  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 202316  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2023



Tenovus Cancer Care

Core costs grant, Health
Tenovus has an 80-year history of supporting 
local healthcare facilities and medical 
research in Wales, and has grown to become 
Wales’s leading cancer charity. It provides 
essential services to cancer patients and 
their families including a telephone service 
manned by cancer nurses, welfare advice for 
families, and community choirs that help 
patients and families to find purpose and joy.

Tenovus also operate the world’s largest 
mobile chemotherapy units, that provide 
chemotherapy and immunotherapy 
treatments for patients in remote, rural 

areas with poor access to facilities. In the 
last 12 months, the three pioneering mobile 
support units administered over 3,500 
treatments, cutting down on patient travel 
time and helping to take the pressure off 
overstretched NHS cancer centres.
Similar to many charities during the 
pandemic, Tenovus’s income from its charity 
shops and community fundraising 
decreased, while demand for its mobile 
units increased; a situation that has 
continued during the cost-of-living crisis. The 
charity is focusing its resources to generate 
income, and the Trustees were pleased to 
make a core costs grant of £90,000 over 
two years to support its work.
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Tenovus Cancer Care exists to transform the lives of people 
affected by cancer. Since launching our first Mobile Support 
Unit in 2009, the Garfield Weston Foundation has been a game-
changing funder, supporting the Units’ development, then the 
protection of the service through Covid and into the current 
complex environment. We simply couldn’t have achieved this 
without them.

Judi Rhys MBE, CEO



Mental Health Innovations

Core costs grant, Health
Mental Health Innovations (MHI) was 
founded in 2017 with a mission to develop 
innovative digital tools to support people 
struggling with their mental health. In 2019 
MHI launched Shout in partnership with 
leading mental health organisations. 
Shout is the UK’s first and only free, 
confidential, 24/7 text messaging support 
service for anyone who is struggling to cope. 
Each texter is connected to one of the 

charity’s 2,400 trained Crisis Volunteers who 
supports the individual through a moment of 
intense need and crisis to one of calm. In 
addition to being a standalone service, 
Shout provides 24/7 mental health support 
to over 80 organisations across the UK 
which otherwise could not afford to offer 
around the clock care.

Shout has held conversations with more 
than 1.7 million people and, over the last 
three years, demand for its services has 
tripled. The impact of the pandemic and 
increasing financial pressures from the cost-
of-living crisis have had significant negative 
effects on people’s mental health, especially 
younger people, and around half of all 
contacts are now under the age of 18. The 
Trustees were delighted to build on their 
earlier support of the service in 2020 with a 
major grant of £300,000 over three years to 
expand Shout’s reach and to ensure 
everyone can access mental health support 
when they need it.
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Garfield Weston Foundation’s generous funding has been 
crucial as Shout has expanded across the UK, helping 
hundreds of thousands of children and young people with 
their mental health. Looking ahead, the Foundation’s 
funding will enable us to increase our support to vulnerable 
teenagers who contact Shout with issues such as suicidal 
ideation, depression, anxiety, relationships, bullying, grief 
and self-harm. We couldn’t be more grateful for this long 
term support for our work.

Victoria Hornby, CEO



Changing Faces

Project grant, Health
Changing Faces is the UK’s leading charity 
for everyone with a scar, mark or condition 
on their face or body that makes them look 
different. It provides advice, support and 
psychosocial services to people with a visible 
difference, and aim to influence policy 
makers, people and the media to drive 
cultural, social and policy change that 
benefits those who look different.

Being perceived as different by others can 
lead to a loss of confidence, emotional or 
mental health issues, bullying and 
marginalisation. Changing Faces’ wellbeing 
services offer a wide range of practical 
resources, including a support and 
information line, facilitated peer support 
programme, psychoeducation workshops, 
self-help guides and an online community 
forum. One-to-one counselling support is 
provided for those most severely affected by 
the consequences of being different. Last 
year over 1,000 children and adults were 
supported and over the past 18 months the 
charity’s wellbeing team has expanded from 
six to nine people to meet growing demand. 

In the next few years, Changing Faces 
expects to help 3,700 children, young 
people and adults via its wellbeing services 
and an additional 60,000 people each year 
via their online resources. The Trustees’ 
grant of £300,000 over three years will 
support the further development of their life-
changing services.
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Thanks to the generous support of 
the Garfield Weston Foundation, 
Changing Faces can provide 
essential support, information and 
advice to anyone with a mark, scar or 
condition that makes them look 
different helping to build self-esteem, 
develop coping strategies and build 
resilience. The support of GWF means 
we can be there to help anyone who 
needs us, whenever they need us.

Heather Blake, CEO 



One Small Thing

Project grant, Welfare
Over 80% of women sent to prison are 
sentenced for non-violent, low-level offences, 
and over 60% of them are mothers. The 
consequences for their children can be life-
changing, with many going into care and 
losing their family home. One Small Thing’s 
purpose built residential hub, Hope Street, 
provides a community-based alternative to 
short custodial sentences for women who 
have committed a low-level, non-violent 
offence. 

Hope Street is the first such centre in the UK 
and will pilot a new approach to working with 
women in the justice system. The women will 
be able to meet the requirements of a 
community sentence while accessing 
comprehensive wrap-around support and 
retaining care of their children. In addition to 
the 124 women and children that Hope 
Street can accommodate each year, a 
further 500 women in the community will be 
helped in a network of move-on homes 
across Hampshire with a range of training, 
accreditation and support programmes. 
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One Small Thing aims to create a 
blueprint for change that can be 
replicated across the country, 
achieving better outcomes for 
women, their children and society.

Claire Hubberstey, CEO



Together Dementia Support

Core costs grant, Welfare
Together Dementia Support helps people 
across Manchester and North Trafford to live 
positively with dementia. It offers a wide 
range of services for people living with 
dementia, and for their carers. 

The Friendship and Activity groups offer a 
fun, social and relaxed place for people with 
dementia to make new friends while the 
Dementia Cafés are a great opportunity for 
their carers to socialise and share their 
experiences. Pyaari Yaadein is a bespoke 
project developed to work with people from a 
South Asian background, with sessions run 
by trained professionals. Other services 
include welfare checks, training and support 
for carers, advocacy and peer support.

Demand for services has risen by 150% in 
the last year, at the same time as the cost of 
providing services has increased.
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The grant from the Garfield Weston 
Foundation has enabled Together 
Dementia Support to run Friendship 
and Activity Groups for our members 
with dementia and support for their 
families. The groups bring such joy 
and purpose to people who would 
otherwise be isolated and inactive at 
home. Support for the family carers 
lightens their burden. “I feel I can 
breathe again!” said one exhausted 
daughter after being taken out for 
a walk.

Sally Ferris, CEO



Summary of grants awarded in the year ended 5 April 2023

Category
Over

£20,000
No. of

grants
£20,000

and under
No. of

grants
Total

amount £
Total no.
of grants

Arts 16,864,850 87 1,490,508 114 18,355,358 201

Community 7,011,000 142 2,619,000 254 9,630,000 396

Education 6,426,000 53 545,000 56 6,971,000 109

Environment 12,027,000 63 249,500 19 12,276,500 82

Faith 1,865,000 45 2,150,000 262 4,015,000 307

Health 9,420,000 106 1,002,000 81 10,422,000 187

Museums & 
Heritage 4,970,000 29 231,500 21 5,201,500 50

Welfare 12,128,000 250 3,365,500 271 15,493,500 521

Youth 6,557,000 127 1,807,000 165 8,364,000 292

Other 410,000 2 - - 410,000 2

Totals 77,678,850 904 13,460,008 1,243 91,138,858 2,147
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Arts £18,355,358

Community £9,630,000

Education £6,971,000

Environment £12,276,500

Health £10,422,000

Welfare £15,493,500

Other £410,000

Faith £4,015,000

Museums & Heritage 
£5,201,500

Youth £8,364,000

Total amount by category
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Arts 201

Community 396

Education 109

Environment 82

Health 187

Welfare 521

Other 2

Faith 307
Museums & Heritage 50

Youth 292

East Midlands £2,109,000

Eastern £6,859,500

National (inc. London) 
£45,577,358

North East £3,145,500

North West £5,494,000

Non-UK £230,000

West Midlands £3,017,000
Yorkshire & The Humber £3,237,000

Wales £2,832,000
South West £4,686,500

Northern Ireland £2,166,500

Scotland £4,646,500

South East £7,138,000

Number of grants by category

East Midlands 95 

Eastern 144 

National (inc. London) 486 

North East 116
Non-UK 2 

North West 198

South East 276

Scotland 167

Yorkshire & The Humber 141

West Midlands 137

Wales 101

South West 223

Northern Ireland 61

Total amount by region

Number of grants by region



Independent auditors’ report to the Trustees of the Garfield Weston 
Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Garfield Weston Foundation (the charity) for the 
year ended 5 April 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance 
Sheet, the Cashflow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

■ give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 5 April 2023 and of its 
incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended

■ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice and

■ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 2011

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISA (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.  

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the 
other information contained within the financial statements.  Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly 
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such 
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charity and its environment obtained in 
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ report. 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

■ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us

■ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

■ certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made

■ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Trustees 
As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 11, the 
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to 
liquidate the charity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditor under section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in 
accordance with the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located 
on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities 
including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures 
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the charity and the industry in which it operates, we identified 
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the acts by the 
charity, which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and we 
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial 
statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the 
preparation of the financial statements such as the Charities Act 2011. 

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial 
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risk 
related to the valuation of the unquoted investment in Wittington Investments Limited 
(‘Wittington’) of which the Foundation owns 683,073 50p ordinary shares (79.2%). 

The valuation of Wittington requires significant estimation as it is an unquoted company and 
there is no readily identifiable market price for its shares. Accordingly, the value of the 
Foundation’s investment has been assessed by the Trustees on the basis of the share of the 
value of the underlyng net assets of Wittington attributable to the Foundation’s holding as at 5 
April 2023. As Wittington’s financial statements are audited as at 18 September 2022 , there 
is a varying degree of estimation required to assess the net asset value as at 5 April 2023 and 
therefore there is more potential for misstatement in this area. 

We assessed Management’s valuation methodology and considered whether it was in 
accordance with the accounting policies of the Foundation, applicable accounting standards 
and industry practice. Wittington’s principal asset is a majority holding (54.5%) in Associated 
British Foods plc. Therefore, the value of the Foundation’s investment in Wittington is driven 
predominantly by the Associated British Foods plc share price as at 5 April 2023. As the shares 
are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the value of this holding can be determined easily. 

Other audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to 
underlying supporting documentation to assess compliance with relevant laws and regulations, 
review of correspondence with legal advisors, review of minutes of meetings held by those 
charged with governance, enquiries of management and testing of journals and evaluating 
whether there was evidence of bias by the Trustees that represented a risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud. 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed 
non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the 
financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional 
misrepresentations, or through collusion.
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Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charity’s Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 8 of the Charities Act 2011 and regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity’s Trustees those matters we 
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
charity and the charity’s Trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.

9 October 2023
UHY Hacker Young LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the 
Companies Act 2006.

UHY Hacker Young
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor 

Quadrant House
4 Thomas More Square 
London E1W 1YW
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Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2023

All recognised gains and losses have been included in the Statement of Financial Activities and 
the amounts included are derived entirely from the continuing activities of the Foundation.

Unrestricted funds

Notes

Income
funds
£’000

Expendable
capital
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total funds
2023

£’000

Total funds
2022

£’000

Income and 
endowments from

Investments 2 87,438 2,915 - 90,353 84,004

Total income 87,438 2,915 - 90,353 84,004

Expenditure

Costs of generating 
funds:

Raising funds - 187 - 187 183

Charitable activities:

Grant making activities 4 91,753 - - 91,753 90,765

Total expenditure 91,753 187 - 91,940 90,948

Net (outgoings)/
income (4,315) 2,728 - (1,587) (6,944)

Other recognised 
gains and losses

Gains/(losses) on 
revaluation and 
disposal of investment 
assets - (7,398) 1,133,303 1,125,905 (2,598,036)

Net movement in funds 
before transfers 
between funds (4,315) (4,670) 1,133,303 1,124,318 (2,604,980)

Gross transfers 
between funds 12 2,251 (2,251) - - -

Net movement in funds (2,064) (6,921) 1,133,303 1,124,318 (2,604,980)

Reconciliation of 
funds 

Total funds brought 
forward 24,108 110,280 7,058,095 7,192,483 9,797,463

Total funds carried 
forward 22,044 103,359 8,191,398 8,316,801 7,192,483
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Balance sheet as at 5 April 2023

The financial statements on pages 28 to 75 were approved by the Trustees on 9 October 2023 
and were signed on their behalf by:

Sir Guy Weston, Chair

Sophia Weston, Deputy Chair

         2023         2022

Notes £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed assets

Investments 9 8,334,851 7,168,184

Current assets

Debtors 10 326 1,186

Cash at bank 34,594 71,920

34,920 73,106

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 11(a) (52,970) (48,807)

Net current (liabilities)/assets (18,050) 24,299

Net assets 8,316,801 7,192,483

Restricted funds

Permanent endowment funds 12 and 13 8,191,398 7,058,095

Unrestricted funds

Permanent endowment funds 12 and 13 103,359 110,280

Income funds 12 and 13 22,044 24,108

8,316,801 7,192,483
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 5 April 2023

2023 2022

Notes £’000 £’000

Cashflows from operating activities

Net income /(expenditure) for the reporting period (as 
per the Statement of financial activities): 1,124,318 (2,604,980)

Adjustments for:

(Gains)/losses on investments (1,126,854) 2,608,052

Dividends and interest from investments (90,352) (84,004)

Decrease in debtors 860 136

Increase in creditors 4,163 10,375

Net cash used in operating activities (87,865) (70,421)

Cash flow from investing activities

Dividends and interest from investments 90,352 84,004

Proceeds from disposal of investments 59,353 15,281

Purchase of investments (100,114) (23,348)

Net cash provided by investing activities 49,591 75,937

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 14 (38,274) 5,516

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 14 73,774 68,258

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14 35,500 73,774
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 5 April 2023

1 Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting 
standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 
FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic 
of Ireland’ (“FRS 102”). In particular, they comply with the Charities Act 2011 and the 
Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities (the “SORP”).

The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have departed 
from the Charities (Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to 
provide a ‘true and fair’ view. This departure has involved following the Charities SORP (FRS 
102).

The Foundation constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial 
statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that certain financial instruments 
are stated at fair value. 

The financial statements have been prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the 
Foundation. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to £’000s. 

The particular accounting policies adopted by the Trustees are described below:

a Going concern

After making enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Foundation 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For 
this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements.

Having reviewed the best estimate of future cash flows to September 2024, and having 
applied reverse stress tests, the possibility that the financial headroom could be exhausted 
is considered to be extremely remote. The Trustees understand the risks, sensitivities and 
judgements included in the cash flow forecast and have a high degree of confidence in 
these cash flows. There is substantial financial headroom between this cash flow forecast 
and the cash on hand and funding available to the Foundation over the period. 

b Incoming resources

Dividends are included when received. Interest receivable on fixed interest securities and 
bank deposits is included on an accruals basis. All incoming resources are recognised 
once the Charity has entitlement to the resources, it is probable that the resources will be 
received, and the monetary value of incoming resources can be measured with sufficient 
reliability.

c Resources expended and irrecoverable VAT

Liabilities are recognised as resources expended as soon as there is a legal or constructive 
obligation committing the Charity to the expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an 
accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related to 
the category.
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Grants awarded are charged in the year when formally awarded by the Trustees and 
communicated to the recipient irrespective of the period covered by the donation as they 
are regarded by the Trustees as financial obligations.

Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended, for which it was 
incurred.

d Allocation of overhead and support costs

Overhead and support costs are allocated first between charitable activity and governance. 
Overhead and support costs relating to charitable activities have been apportioned based 
on the value of individual grant awards made as it is considered that more is spent 
awarding, monitoring and assessing grants of greater value. The allocation of overhead 
and support costs is analysed in note 5.

e Costs of generating funds

The costs of generating funds consist of investment management fees and commissions.  

f Charitable activities

Costs of charitable activities include grants made and an apportionment of overhead and 
support costs as shown in notes 3 and 4.

g Governance costs

Governance costs comprise all costs involving the public accountability of the Charity and 
its compliance with regulation and good practice. These costs include costs related to 
statutory audit and legal fees together with an apportionment of overhead and support 
costs.

h Interest in Wittington Investments Limited

At 5 April 2023 the Foundation owned 79.2% (2022: 79.2%) of Wittington Investments 
Limited, a company registered in England. Wittington Investments Limited is the ultimate 
holding company of Associated British Foods plc, and a wide range of investments 
including Fortnum & Mason plc and Heal’s plc, one hotel, a real estate portfolio and 
significant financial investments. Associated British Foods plc is listed on the London Stock 
Exchange. The Foundation receives its income from Wittington Investments Limited by way 
of dividends and records its investment in that company at the Trustees’ valuation.

As the activities of Wittington Investments Limited and its subsidiaries are fundamentally 
different from the activities of the Foundation, consolidated accounts have not been 
prepared as the Trustees are of the opinion that the adopted policy gives a true and fair 
view of the Foundation’s assets and sources of income. Details of the consolidated 
accounts of Wittington Investments Limited are shown in note 9 to these accounts. The 
Trustees have agreed this policy with the Charity Commission. 

i Fixed assets investments

Investments are stated at market value as at the balance sheet date. The statement of 
financial activities includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluation and disposals 
throughout the year.
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j Realised gains and losses

All gains and losses are taken to the statement of financial activities as they arise. 
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales 
proceeds and opening market value. Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the 
difference between the market value at the year end and opening market value. Realised 
and unrealised gains are not separated in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

k Fund accounting

Details of the nature and purpose of each fund are set out in note 13.

l Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are shown in note 8 to these accounts and are 
recognised when the Foundation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

Financial assets which qualify as basic financial instruments, including trade and other 
receivables and cash, are subsequently valued at amortised cost and assessed for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Other financial assets, including investments, are subsequently valued at fair value. 
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at 
transaction price including transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as 
at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. If an 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of 
interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised only when either the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or are settled or all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset are substantially transferred to another party.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Investments are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. The market values of 
the managed portfolios are advised by the portfolio managers. The statement of financial 
activities includes the net gains and losses arising in revaluation and disposals through the 
year. 

■ Quoted investments comprise publicly quoted, listed securities including shares, bonds 
and units. Quoted investments are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date. 

■ Unquoted investments are valued at the Trustees’ best estimate of fair value as 
explained in note 9.
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2 Investment income

The unlisted investment income comprises dividends received from Wittington Investments 
Limited.

 Investment income – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2022

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

2022
£’000

2021
£’000

Unlisted equities - - 82,140 82,140 82,140

Listed equities 1,093 - - 1,093 1,048

Listed unit trusts 146 245 - 391 368

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 315 - - 315 322

1,554 245 82,140 83,939 83,878

Cash deposits – interest 39 53

Other income 26 32

84,004 83,963

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Unlisted equities - - 87,092 87,092 82,140

Listed equities 1,167 - - 1,167 1,093

Listed unit trusts 192 251 - 443 391

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 356 - - 356 315

Endowment Fund 949 949 -

2,664 251 87,092 90,007 83,939

Cash deposits – interest 346 39

Other income - 26

90,353 84,004
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3 Grant-making activities

The list of individual grants made during the year is set out in note 16 and grants paid during 
the year are summarised by category in note 11.

Significant aspects of the grant activity during the year are described on pages 14 to 21 of the 
Trustees’ report.

4 Analysis of charitable expenditure
The Charity undertook no direct charitable activities but awarded grants to a number of 
institutions in furtherance of its charitable activities. As a consequence of supporting charitable 
organisations, the Foundation achieves public benefit. The Foundation’s grant policy is to 
accept only appeals from UK registered charities. Registration provides an element of 
assurance of public benefit, although for charities registered before the implementation of the 
Charities Act 2006 the public benefit was a presumption.

Grant 
funded 
activity 

£’000

Support 
costs

 £’000

Governance 
costs
£’000

2023
Total

£’000

2022
Total

£’000

Arts 18,355 312 150 18,817 5,178

Community 9,630 164 79 9,873 7,026

Education 6,971 119 57 7,147 10,055

Environment 12,277 209 100 12,586 7,557

Faith 4,015 68 33 4,116 4,592

Health 10,422 177 85 10,684 11,662

Museums & Heritage 5,202 88 43 5,333 11,696

Welfare 15,493 263 127 15,883 14,738

Youth 8,364 142 68 8,574 19,056

Other 410 7 3 420 209

91,139 1,549 745 93,433 91,769

Return relating to grants 
made in prior years (378) - - (378) (250)

Expired commitments (1,302) - - (1,302) (754)

89,459 1,549 745 91,753 90,765

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Grants awarded and associated costs (note 4) 91,753 90,765
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 Analysis of charitable expenditure – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2022

5 Allocation of support costs and overheads

The costs relating to grant-making activity represent costs incurred in assessing applications, 
administration of the grants awarded and post grant monitoring.

The Foundation does not employ any staff. Staff costs comprise charges of £829,550 (2022: 
£698,953) from Wittington Investments Limited in respect of the work undertaken by its 
employees for the Foundation and £80,243 (2022: £78,505) consultant charges. 

Included within other support costs and overheads are amounts relating to accountancy of 
£57,109 (2022: £51,360), computing and IT costs of £37,763 (2022: £26,293) and 
accommodation costs of £401,257 (2022: £411,600).

Governance
costs
£’000

Grant-
making
activity 

£’000

Total
2023

£’000

Total
2022

£’000
Basis of 

Apportionment

Legal & professional 
fee costs 57 - 57 109 N/A

Staff costs 182 728 910 778 Staff time

Other costs 506 821 1,327 1,002 Staff time

745 1,549 2,294 1,889

Grant 
funded 
activity 

£’000

Support 
costs

 £’000

Governance 
costs
£’000

2022
Total

£’000

2021
Total

£’000

Arts 5,071 72 35 5,178 32,645

Community 6,881 97 48 7,026 6,578

Education 9,848 139 68 10,055 6,649

Environment 7,402 104 51 7,557 7,172

Faith 4,498 63 31 4,592 3,724

Health 11,422 161 79 11,662 8,468

Museums & Heritage 11,455 162 79 11,696 7,311

Welfare 14,434 204 100 14,738 19,676

Youth 18,664 263 129 19,056 7,524

Other 205 3 1 209 408

89,880 1,268 621 91,769 100,155

Return relating to grants 
made in prior years (250) - - (250) (319)

Expired commitments (754) - - (754) (1,253)

88,876 1,268 621 90,765 98,583
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Nine (2022: 9) Trustees received expenses totalling £15,075 (2022: £589) relating to travel 
and subsistence.

The total support cost attributable to charitable activities is then apportioned pro rata to the 
value of grants awarded in the year as set out in note 4.

 Allocation of support costs and overheads – comparatives for the year   
 ended 5 April 2022

6 Analysis of governance costs

The governance costs comprise costs of running the Foundation and planning for future 
developments, including audit fees and costs of complying with constitutional and statutory 
requirements, such as Trustees’ meetings and the preparation of accounts satisfying public 
accountability.

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Auditors’ remuneration – audit services 29 26

Staff costs 182 155

Other support costs 534 440

745 621

Governance
costs
£’000

Grant-
making
activity 

£’000

Total
2022

£’000

Total
2021

£’000
Basis of 

Apportionment

Legal & professional 
fee costs 109 - 109 38 N/A

Staff costs 156 622 778 741 Staff time

Other costs 356 646 1,002 1,055 Staff time

621 1,268 1,889 1,834
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7 Trustees’ remuneration
a Trustees’ remuneration 

No remuneration was paid to the Trustees for their services to the Foundation. 

b Directors’ remuneration

As stated in notes 1(h) and 9, the Foundation owns 79.2% of Wittington Investments 
Limited which in turn holds 55.1% of Associated British Foods plc and 100% of Fortnum & 
Mason plc plus a number of other wholly owned subsidiaries.

Four of the Trustees, Guy Weston, George Weston, Anna Catrina Hobhouse and Alannah 
Weston are directors of Wittington Investments Limited. Of these four, Guy Weston, Anna 
Hobhouse and Alannah Cochrane received remuneration from Wittington Investments 
Limited.

George Weston is Group Chief Executive Director of Associated British Foods plc and 
received remuneration from the company in that capacity. Anna Catrina Hobhouse is 
chairperson and a director of Fortnum & Mason plc and received remuneration from 
Wittington Investments Limited in that capacity.

Remuneration (comprising salary, fees, bonus and benefits) paid to Trustees in their 
capacity as directors of these companies, which is authorised by clause 13 of the Trust 
Deed, as set out in the most recently available accounts of the relevant companies was as 
follows: 

Note: full details of George G Weston’s remuneration, pension and options are set out in the 
Remuneration Report contained in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022 of Associated British 
Foods plc.

c  Key management remuneration

Key management personnel’s remuneration constituted the total aggregate amount of 
£396,503 (2022: £360,615).

Year ended
17 September 2022

£’000

Year ended
18 September 2021

£’000

Anna Catrina Hobhouse – 
as a non- executive director of Wittington Investments 
Limited 39 21

as a chairperson and director of Fortnum & Mason plc 183 110

Alannah Weston –
As a non-executive director of Wittington Investments 
Limited 67 -

Guy H Weston – 
as a director of Wittington Investments Limited 618 345

George G Weston – 
as a director of Associated British Foods plc 
(note below) 2,286 3,390
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8 Financial instruments

9 Investments

* The cost at 5 April 2022 and 2023 is the historical cost of the investment in the managed 
funds and the charities property fund or, in the case of unlisted investments, the valuation at 
the date of the gift to the Foundation.

 Investments – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2022

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

At valuation 
Fixed asset investments

At 6 April 2021 99,608 5,967 9,661,597 9,767,172

Movement in year 2,515 962 (2,602,465) (2,598,988)

At 5 April 2022 102,123 6,929 7,059,132 7,168,184

At Cost*

At 6 April 2021 and at 5 April 2022 68,500 5,000 4,745 78,245

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 326 1,186

Instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 8,334,851 7,168,184

8,335,177 7,169,370

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost 52,970 48,807

52,970 48,807

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

At valuation 
Fixed asset investments

At 6 April 2022 102,123 6,929 7,059,132 7,168,184

Movement in year 34,142 (939) 1,133,464 1,166,667

At 5 April 2023 136,265 5,990 8,192,596 8,334,851

At Cost*

At 6 April 2022 68,500 5,000 4,745 78,245

Movement in year 40,000 - - 40,000

At 5 April 2023 108,500 5,000 4,745 118,245
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 Analysis of value of investment assets at 5 April 2023 by type

 Analysis of value of investment assets by type – comparatives for the year  
 ended 5 April 2022

The managed funds are managed on a discretionary total return basis.

The charities property fund comprises units in the Savills Charities’ Property Fund.

Unlisted investments

The unlisted investments comprise 683,073 50p ordinary shares (79.2%) of Wittington 
Investments Limited, an unquoted company, see note 1 (h).

The business of Wittington Investments Limited is the management of investments in a wide 
range of assets. As it is an unquoted company there is no readily identifiable market price for its 
shares. Accordingly, the value of the Foundation’s investments has been assessed by the 
Trustees on the basis of the share of the value of the underlying net assets of Wittington 
attributable to the Foundation’s holding.

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Unlisted securities - - 7,059,132 7,059,132

Listed equities 23,680 6,929 - 30,609

Listed unit trusts 41,236 - - 41,236

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 5,601 - - 5,601

Charitable unauthorised unit trust 24,352 - - 24,352

Money market fund 5,400 - - 5,400

Cash held within the portfolio 1,854 - - 1,854

102,123 6,929 7,059,132 7,168,184

Managed
funds
£’000

Charities
property

fund
£’000

Unlisted
£’000

Total
£’000

Unlisted securities - - 8,192,596 8,192,596

Listed equities 47,539 5,990 - 53,529

Listed unit trusts 14,676 - - 14,676

Listed corporate bonds and gilts 46,549 - - 46,549

Unlisted property funds 1,349 - - 1,349

Charitable unauthorised unit trust 23,746 - - 23,746

Money market fund 1,500 - - 1,500

Cash held within the portfolio 906 - - 906

136,265 5,990 8,192,596 8,333,851
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Wittington’s principal asset is a holding of 56.1% of the issued ordinary capital of Associated 
British Foods plc (‘ABF’) which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. In assessing the value 
of the underlying net assets of Wittington, the value of its investment in ABF has been based on 
the closing price as at 5 April 2023.

In addition, Wittington holds a wide range of other assets managed in four different business 
segments:

■ Luxury Retail: comprising the 100% ownership of Fortnum & Mason and Heal’s, two long 
established retailers.

■ Real Estate: investing in high-quality investment properties in the retail, office and 
distribution sectors across the UK. Wittington also takes strategic positions in selective 
development opportunities, alongside local partners or sector specialists. The portfolio is 
held at cost less provision for impairment within the financial statements. The third-party 
valuations prepared at 17 September 2022 were considerably higher than this carrying 
value when considering the portfolio in total. The trustees do not expect material movement 
in the market value of the properties compared to the valuation as at 17 September 2022.

■ Hotels: as an extension of its Real Estate strategy, Wittington owns the Richmond Hill Hotel. 
The sale of the Grand Hotel, Brighton completed on 2 May 2023.

■ Private Markets & Other Investments: Wittington invests both directly and via externally 
managed funds in private equity, private debt and fixed income markets. Other investments 
are principally composed of liquid investments in short-dated investment grade bonds and 
listed equities.

The most recent financial year end for Wittington was 17 September 2022. As such, aside from 
the investment in ABF, Wittington’s remaining investments have been valued using net asset 
values in the 31 March 2023 management accounts, which are considered to be their fair 
values. At 5 April, the fair value of Wittington including Associated British Foods Plc is 
considered to be £10.34 billion and the Foundation’s share of this (79.24%) is £8.19 billion. 

The Trustees have no current intention of disposing of the interest in Wittington.
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10 Debtors

The loan receivable at 5 April 2022 reflected an interest free loan to Mission Employable of 
£590,000 that was subsequently repaid. 

11 a Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

 b Total grants payable 

Grants payable consist of future payments of £18.1 million (2022: £22 million) due to charities 
under existing multi-year arrangements, and pledges of £20.3 million (2022: £26.1 million) 
that require charities to fulfil specific prerequisite obligations.

Grants 
payable 

b’fwd 
£’000

Grants 
awarded 

£’000

Grants
paid

£’000
Grants 

lapsed £’000

Grants
payable 

c’fwd
£’000

Arts 2,286 18,355 (17,330) (50) 3,261

Community 2,814 9,630 (8,376) (541) 3,527

Education 3,303 6,971 (5,137) (530) 4,607

Environment 5,222 12,277 (10,573) (25) 6,901

Faith 2,040 4,015 (3,557) (83) 2,415

Health 14,405 10,422 (11,210) (30) 13,587

Museums & 
Heritage 3,690 5,201 (4,681) - 4,210

Welfare 4,693 15,493 (13,613) (18) 6,573

Youth 9,531 8,364 (10,784) (25) 7,093

Other 105 410 (120) - 370

48,089 91,138 (85,381) (1,302) 52,544

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Grants payable 52,544 48,089

Accrued expenses 374 369

Trade creditors 52 349

52,970 48,807

2023
£’000

2022
£’000

Debtor: amounts falling due within one year

Accrued interest 198 241

Amount due from investment managers 128 355

Loan receivable - 590

326 1,186
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 Total grants payable – comparatives for the year ended 5 April 2022

12 Analysis of charitable funds

Permanent endowment

The permanent endowment funds comprise the original capital fund, and gains thereto, 
established to provide income for grant payments in accordance with the objectives of the 
Foundation. The capital may not be converted into income. The funds are represented by the 
investments included in fixed assets. Unrealised gains on revaluation of these investments are 
credited to the funds.

Analysis of Fund 
movements

Balance at 
6 April 

2022
£’000

Incoming 
resources 

£’000

Resources 
expended 

£’000
Transfers 

£’000

Gains
and losses 

£’000

Balance at 
5 April 

2023
£’000

Permanent 
endowment 7,058,095 - - - 1,133,303 8,191,398

Unrestricted 
expendable 
capital 110,280 2,915 (187) (2,251) (7,398) 103,359

Unrestricted 
income fund 24,108 87,438 (91,753) 2,251 - 22,044

Total 7,192,483 90,353 (91,940) - 1,125,905 8,316,801

Grants 
payable 

b’fwd 
£’000

Grants 
awarded 

£’000

Grants
paid

£’000
Grants 

lapsed £’000

Grants
payable 

c’fwd
£’000

Arts 6,623 5,071 (9,398) (10) 2,286

Community 2,453 6,881 (6,450) (70) 2,814

Education 2,473 9,848 (8,988) (30) 3,303

Environment 2,836 7,402 (4,741) (275) 5,222

Faith 2,477 4,498 (4,777) (158) 2,040

Health 12,705 11,422 (9,722) - 14,405

Museums & 
Heritage 3,715 11,456 (11,481) - 3,690

Welfare 3,175 14,434 (12,731) (185) 4,693

Youth 1,401 18,663 (10,508) (25) 9,531

Other 185 205 (285) - 105

38,043 89,880 (79,081) (753) 48,089

Garfield Weston Foundation  43



Unrestricted expendable capital

In accordance with the authority given to the Trustees under an Order of the Charity 
Commission dated 19 September 2001, £65,747,000 was transferred to an expendable 
capital fund in relation to which income and capital are distributable at the discretion of the 
Trustees. £5 million was invested in 2001/02 in the Charities Property Fund and £60 million 
was invested in 2002/03 with investment managers in balanced portfolios on a discretionary 
total return basis. Income and investment gains and losses are taken to this fund and the 
amount allocated to income by the Trustees, £2,250,643 (2022: £3,045,313), is shown as a 
transfer to the income fund.

Unrestricted income funds

The income of the Foundation is expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of 
the objects of the Foundation. Gains on investments held in the income funds are credited to 
these funds.

 Analysis of charitable funds – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2022

Analysis of Fund 
movements

Balance at 
6 April 

2021
£’000

Incoming 
resources 

£’000

Resources 
expended 

£’000
Transfers 

£’000

Gains
and losses 

£’000

Balance at 
5 April 

2022
£’000

Permanent 
endowment 9,661,597 - - - (2,603,502) 7,058,095

Unrestricted 
expendable 
capital 106,242 1,800 (183) (3,045) 5,466 110,280

Unrestricted 
income fund 29,624 82,204 (90,765) 3,045 - 24,108

Total 9,797,463 84,004 (90,948) - (2,598,036) 7,192,483
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13 Analysis of net assets between funds

 Analysis of net assets between funds – comparatives for the year ended 
 5 April 2022

14 Analysis of changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year 

 Analysis of changes in cash balances during the year – comparatives for   
 the year ended 5 April 2022

Cash held for future investment is classified within Investments on the Balance Sheet. (See 
note 9)

2021
£’000

Cash flow 
£’000

2022
£’000

Cash at bank 67,401 4,519 71,920

Cash held for future investment 857 997 1,854

68,258 5,516 73,774

2022
£’000

Cash flow 
£’000

2023
£’000

Cash at bank 71,920 (37,326) 34,594

Cash held for future investment 1,854 (948) 906

73,774 (38,274) 35,500

Fund balances at 5 April 2023 are 
represented by

Income
fund

£’000

Expendable 
capital

fund
£’000

Endowment 
funds
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Investments - 143,453 8,191,398 8,334,851

Current assets 34,594 326 - 34,920

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year (12,550) (40,420) - (52,970)

Total net assets 22,044 103,359 8,191,398 8,316,801

Fund balances at 5 April 2022 are 
represented by

Income
fund

£’000

Expendable 
capital

fund
£’000

Endowment 
funds
£’000

Total
funds
£’000

Investments - 110,089 7,058,095 7,168,184

Current assets 71,920 1,186 - 73,106

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year (47,812) (995) - (48,807)

Total net assets 24,108 110,280 7,058,095 7,192,483
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15 Statement of financial activities for the year ended 5 April 2022

Unrestricted funds

Notes

Income
funds
£’000

Expendable
capital
£’000

Restricted
funds
£’000

Total funds
2022

£’000

Total funds
2021

£’000

Income and 
endowments from

Investments 2 82,204 1,800 - 84,004 83,963

Total income 82,204 1,800 - 84,004 83,963

Expenditure

Costs of generating 
funds:

Raising funds - 183 - 183 154

Charitable activities:

Grant-making activities 4 90,765 - - 90,765 98,583

Total expenditure 90,765 183 - 90,948 98,737

Net (outgoings)/
income (8,561) 1,617 - (6,944) (14,774)

Other recognised 
gains and losses

Gains/(losses) on 
revaluation and 
disposal of investment 
assets - 5,466 (2,603,502) (2,598,036) 2,349,207

Net movement in funds 
before transfers 
between funds (8,561) 7,083 (2,603,502) (2,604,980) 2,334,433

Gross transfers 
between funds 12 3,045 (3,045) - - -

Net movement in funds (5,516) 4,038 (2,603,502) (2,604,980) 2,334,433

Reconciliation of 
funds 

Total funds brought 
forward 29,624 106,242 9,661,597 9,797,463 7,463,030

Total funds carried 
forward 24,108 110,280 7,058,095 7,192,483 9,797,463

46  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2023



Garfield Weston Foundation  47



Grants over £20,000

Arts  £
The National Gallery London 10,000,000 
The Royal Academy 
of Arts London 1,000,000  
Factory Trust Manchester 500,000  
House of Illustration London 300,000 * 
North Music Trust Gateshead 300,000  
Britten Pears Arts Snape 250,000  
The Old Vic Theatre 
Trust 2000 London 250,000 * 
Capital Theatres  Edinburgh 200,000  
PACE Theatre Company Paisley 200,000  
The MAC (Metropolitan 
Arts Centre) Belfast 200,000  
Cockpit Arts London 150,000  
Gateway Studio CIO Gateshead 150,000  
The Paraorchestra 
and Friends Bristol 150,000  
The Yard Theatre London 150,000  
Welsh National Opera Ltd Cardiff 150,000  
Bristol Music Trust Bristol 100,000 * 
Heart n Soul London 100,000  
The National Youth Theatre
of Great Britain London 100,000  
Project Art Works Hastings 95,000  
The Aloud Charity Cardiff 90,000  
Unicorn Theatre London 90,000  
Union Chapel Project  London 75,000  
Academy of Ancient 
Music Cambridge 60,000  
Armonico Consort Ltd  Warwick 60,000  
Orchestras Live Leeds 60,000  
Shape London  London 60,000  
The Oxford School of 
Drama Trust Woodstock 60,000  
Greentop Community 
Circus Centre Sheffield 50,000  
Hackney Empire Ltd London 50,000  
Hospital Rooms London 50,000  
Kiln Theatre London 50,000  
Replay Productions Ltd Belfast 50,000  
The Fruitmarket Gallery Edinburgh 50,000  
The Guildhall Trust Portsmouth 50,000 * 
The Lowry Centre Trust Salford 50,000  
Tyne & Wear Archives and Museums  
Development Trust Newcastle upon Tyne 50,000  
Barnsley Civic 
Enterprise Ltd Barnsley  45,000  
Darbar Arts Culture 
Heritage Culture Trust Leicester  40,000  
English National Ballet London  40,000  
Greenwich Dance Thamesmead  40,000  

Liverpool and Merseyside 
Theatres Trust Ltd Liverpool  40,000  
Philharmonia Orchestra London  34,850  
Arts & Business Cymru Cardiff  30,000  
Arts For All London  30,000  
Awards for Young 
Musicians Bristol  30,000  
Burnley Youth Theatre Burnley  30,000  
Chineke Foundation London  30,000  
Company Three Theatre London  30,000  
Disability Arts in 
Shropshire Shrewsbury  30,000  
Ex Cathedra Ltd Birmingham  30,000  
Fluid Motion 
Theatre Company Basingstoke  30,000  
Gorse Hill Studios 
Creative Community Manchester  30,000  
Guild Of Players Dumfries  30,000  
Helix Arts North Shields  30,000  
International Curators 
Forum London  30,000  
Lewisham Youth 
Theatre Ltd London  30,000  
Literature Wales 
Llenyddiaeth Cymru  Cardiff  30,000  
Magic Me London  30,000  
Musical Keys Norwich  30,000  
National Children's Orchestras 
of Great Britain Bristol  30,000  
Northern Print Studio Newcastle upon Tyne  30,000 * 
NTC Touring Theatre 
Company Ltd Amble, Morpeth  30,000  
Open Clasp  
Theatre Company Newcastle upon Tyne  30,000  
Peer Productions Woking  30,000  
Samling Institute for 
Young Artists Hexham  30,000  
Silent Uproar Hull  30,000  
Stagetext London  30,000  
Tara Theatre London  30,000  
The Havering Theatre 
Trust Ltd Hornchurch  30,000  
The Little Angel Theatre London  30,000  
The Young Urban Arts 
Foundation Ltd London  30,000  
Venture Arts Manchester  30,000  
Camden People's Theatre London  25,000  
English Folk Expo Sacriston  25,000  
Forward Arts Foundation London  25,000  
London Youth Choir London  25,000  
Mahogany Opera Group Whitehaven  25,000  
Manchester Camerata Manchester  25,000  
McNicol Ballet Collective Huddersfield  25,000  
Norwich Puppet Theatre Norwich  25,000  
Prism Arts Carlisle  25,000  
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Riot Ensemble London  25,000  
The Garage Trust Ltd Norwich  25,000  
The Nucleo Project London  25,000  
The Plough Arts Centre Great Torrington  25,000  
The Portico Library Manchester  25,000  
Toonspeak Young 
People's Theatre Barmulloch  25,000 * 
Total for Arts 16,684,850
(Total number of grants: 87)

Community  £
Pilotlight London  1,000,000  
The Felix Project London     300,000  
Always Ahead  Crewe     250,000 * 
174 Trust Belfast     150,000  
Blackmountain 
Shared Space Belfast     100,000  
City Harvest London     100,000  
LifeLine Church  Dagenham     100,000 * 
The Stonebridge 
City Farm Nottingham     100,000  
Institute for Voluntary 
Action Research London       90,000  
Liverpool Six 
Community Association Liverpool       90,000  
Alexandra Rose Charity  Brighton       80,000  
Horden Youth and 
Community Centre Peterlee       80,000  
National Council for 
Voluntary Organisations London       75,000  
Vauxhall (City) Farm London       75,000 * 
CAUSE Belfast       70,000  
CatZero Hull       60,000  
Full Fact London       60,000  
Hope Nottingham CIO Nottingham       60,000  
Nova New Opportunities London       60,000  
Pro Bono Economics London       60,000  
Safe New Futures Southampton       60,000  
The Well Multi-Cultural 
Resource Centre Glasgow       60,000  
Auckland Youth and 
Community Centre Ltd Bishop Auckland       50,000  
Bonny Downs Community 
Association (BDCA) London       50,000  
Carer Support 
South Lakes Kendal       50,000  
Chopwell Regeneration   
CIO Newcastle upon Tyne     50,000  
Christian Action & 
Resource Enterprise  Cleethorpes       50,000  
Father Hudson's Society Birmingham       50,000  
Fleetwood Town 
Community Trust Fleetwood       50,000 * 
GroceryAid  Sandhurst       50,000  
Home To Work Ltd Cleator Moor       50,000  
Sheppey Matters Sheerness       50,000  
St Ethelburga's Centre for 
Reconciliation & Peace London       50,000 
The Bromley by 
Bow Centre London       50,000 

The Magpie Project London       50,000 
The Seneca Trust London       50,000 
Redhills CIO Durham  50,000 
Netherley Youth and 
Community Initiative Liverpool       45,000 
The Recover Team ltd Welwyn Garden City      45,000 
Back on Track Manchester       40,000 
Building Ballysally 
Together Coleraine       40,000 
Gasworks Dock 
Partnership London       40,000 
Getting Better 
Together Ltd Shotts       40,000 
Holborn Community 
Association London       40,000 
InSpire at St Peters London       40,000 
Kennington Association London       40,000 
Pat Benson Community 
Sports Foundation Birmingham       40,000 
Springfield Community 
Flat  London       40,000 
STAA Nottingham       40,000 
Stonegrove Community 
Trust Edgware       40,000 
Talbot House 
Support Centre Manchester       40,000 
Talking Money Bristol       40,000 
The Bow Foodbank Ltd London       40,000 
The Cowshed  Reading       40,000 
The Oxford House in 
Bethnal Green London       40,000 
Central London 
Samaritans London       35,000 
Whittington Park 
Community Association London       35,000 
Women in Sport London       35,000 
Abergavenny Community 
Trust Abergavenny       30,000 
Barmouth Oasis 
Community Group Barmouth       30,000 *
Bierley Community 
Association Ltd Bradford       30,000 
Birmingham LGBT Birmingham       30,000 
Cape Community Day 
Care Centre Smethwick       30,000 
Carers Forum 
Stirling Area Stirling       30,000 
Caring Together Charity St Ives       30,000 
Chain Lane 
Community Hub Knaresborough       30,000 
Christians Against 
Poverty Bradford       30,000 
Crosslight Advice London       30,000 
Darts (Doncaster 
Community Arts) Doncaster       30,000 
FareShare Midlands Leicestershire       30,000 
FareShare North East Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000 
FEAST With Us London       30,000 
Feeny Community 
Association Ltd Londonderry       30,000 
Givin it Laldie Glasgow       30,000 
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Habitat for Humanity 
Great Britain Slough       30,000  
Hastings Furniture 
Service Ltd  Hastings       30,000  
Healthy Living
 Projects Ltd  Ilford       30,000  
Horsforth St Margaret’s 
A.F.C. Leeds       30,000  
IndoAmerican Refugee 
and Migrant Organization London       30,000  
Intercom  Exeter       30,000  
Kent Coast Volunteering Deal       30,000  
Lancashire Women Accrington       30,000  
Llanhilleth Miners 
Institute Ltd Abertillery       30,000  
New Ferry Rangers Community 
and Football Club   Higher Bebington       30,000  
Park Life Heavitree Exeter       30,000  
Pecan London       30,000  
Plunkett Foundation Woodstock       30,000  
ReBorne Community 
Church Sherborne       30,000 * 
Reidvale Neighbourhood 
Centre Glasgow       30,000  
Ryders Green Methodist 
Day Centre West Bromwich       30,000  
Scotswood Natural   
Community Garden Ltd Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000  
SERVE Rushden       30,000  
Southmead Development 
Trust Bristol       30,000  
Springfield Domestic 
Abuse Support in 
South Lakeland Kendal       30,000  
St Martin's Centre   
Partnership Newcastle upon Tyne   30,000  
Support Through Court  London       30,000  
Sussex Street 
Christian Centre Rhyl       30,000  
TEN North East Ltd Hebburn       30,000  
The Braunstone 
Foundation  Leicester       30,000  
The Bridge Project Sudbury       30,000 * 
The Florence Institute 
Trust Ltd Liverpool       30,000  
The Good Gym London       30,000  
The Haven 
Community Project Birmingham       30,000  
The Larder West Lothian Livingston       30,000  
The WM Morrison Darlington 
Enterprise Trust Darlington       30,000  
Women's Health Information 
and Support Centre Ltd  Liverpool       30,000  
Women's Health Matters Leeds       30,000  
Trevone Village Hall Padstow       26,000  
Abbots Bromley Sports 
Association Ltd Abbots Bromley       25,000  
Aberporth Village Hall  Aberporth       25,000  
Active Communities 
(Scotland) Ltd Johnstone       25,000  

Alice (Relief of Poverty 
& Advancement  Newcastle under
of Community) Lyme       25,000  
Ascend Herts Ltd Watford       25,000  
Ascension Community 
Trust London       25,000  
Belle Vue Community, 
Sports and Youth 
Centre Ltd Hartlepool       25,000  
Bridgend Farmhouse Edinburgh       25,000  
Community Ventures 
(Middlesbrough) Ltd Middlesbrough       25,000  
Crest Co-operative Llandudno Junction       25,000  
Eastside Community 
Trust Bristol       25,000  
GIFT 
(Give It Forward Today) London       25,000  
Heart of Tamworth 
Community Project Tamworth       25,000 * 
Highgate Newtown 
Community Partners  London       25,000  
Huby Playing Fields 
Association York       25,000 * 
Loughborough Junction 
Action Group London       25,000  
Made In Hackney London       25,000  
Margaret Carey 
Foundation Ltd  Shipley       25,000  
Mid Ulster 
Volunteer Centre Magherafelt       25,000  
Open Door Exmouth Exmouth       25,000  
Poplar Housing and 
Generation Community 
Association Ltd  London       25,000 * 
Rannoch Community 
Trust Ltd Pitlochry       25,000  
Red Lion House Charity   Burton upon Trent       25,000 * 
Rooted In Bradford       25,000  
Shildon Alive Shildon       25,000  
Solihull Action 
through Advocacy Solihull       25,000  
Stanleys Community 
Centre Morecambe       25,000  
Sufra NW London London       25,000  
Swindon Carers Centre Swindon       25,000  
Take A Part CIO Plymouth       25,000  
The Gellideg Foundation 
Community Association Merthyr Tydfil       25,000  
Unity North London Trust London       25,000 * 
Whitehaven Community 
Trust Ltd Cumbria       25,000  
Yes Manchester CIO Manchester       25,000  
Total for Community  7,011,000
(Total number of grants: 142)

Education  £
IntoUniversity London  1,000,000  
University of the 
Arts London London  500,000  
Black Mountains College Brecon  350,000 * 
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University of 
Hertfordshire Hatfield  350,000  
ARK London  300,000  
School-Home Support London  300,000  
The Queen's University 
of Belfast Foundation Belfast  300,000  
ThinkForward (UK) London  300,000  
University of Bath Bath  250,000  
The Difference 
Education Ltd London  225,000  
Arvon London  150,000 * 
National Numeracy Lewes  150,000  
Read – The Reading 
Agency London  150,000  
The Access Project London  150,000  
Now Teach  London  100,000  
Royal National Children's 
Springboard Foundation London   100,000  
Royal Norfolk 
Agricultural Association Norwich  100,000  
The Creative Dimension 
Trust  Shelford  100,000  
The Garwood Foundation South Croydon  100,000  
The Royal Veterinary College 
Animal Care Trust North Mymms  100,000  
Acumen Academy UK London    96,000  
Transforming Lives for 
Good (TLG) (Foodbank) Bradford    90,000  
The Peter Pan Centre 
for Children with  Newcastle under 
Special Needs Lyme    60,000  
Apps for Good London    50,000  
Challenge Partners London    50,000  
Dylan Thomas 
Community School Swansea    50,000 * 
Learn English at Home 
(LEAH) London    50,000  
Royal School of 
Church Music Salisbury    50,000  
St Edmunds Society Norwich    50,000  
The Centre for Literacy in 
Primary Education London    50,000  
Villiers Park 
Educational Trust Cambridge    50,000  
Art History Link-Up Wiggonholt    40,000  
AZBUKA Foundation London    40,000  
Foundation Years Trust  Wirral    40,000  
Guildhall School Trust London    40,000  
Helen Arkell 
Dyslexia Centre Farnham    40,000  
Schoolreaders Bedford    40,000  
University of Westminster  London    40,000  
Action Tutoring London    30,000  
EBP South Portsmouth    30,000  
First Story Ltd London    30,000  
Foreland Fields Charity Ramsgate    30,000 * 
Gloucestershire Academy 
of Music  Gloucester    30,000 * 
Learning with Parents Bristol    30,000  
Olive Academies London    30,000  

Petit Miracles London    30,000 
Ryedale Learning Trust York    30,000 *
Wolverley CE 
Secondary School Kidderminster    30,000 *
Dingley's Promise  Reading    25,000 
Education Business 
Partnership Kent  Ramsgate    25,000 
Farnham Heath 
End School Farnham    25,000 *
Gosfield School Ltd Halstead    25,000 
Holy Trinity Foundation  Cookstown    25,000 
Total for Education 6,426,000
(Total number of grants: 63)

Environment  £
The Foundation and 
Friends of The Royal 
Botanic Gardens, Kew Richmond 5,000,000 
Oceana London  1,000,000 
The Rivers Trust Callington   450,000 *
The Marine Biological 
Association of the UK Plymouth   400,000 
Birdlife International Cambridge   355,000 
Scottish Wildlife Trust Edinburgh   300,000 
The Whitley Fund 
for Nature London   250,000 
Bumblebee Conservation 
Trust Eastleigh   200,000 
Plantlife International Salisbury   200,000 
Somerset Wildlife Trust Taunton   200,000 
The Open University Milton Keynes   200,000 
University of Surrey Guildford   200,000 
The South East 
Rivers Trust London   165,000 
Keep Wales Tidy Cardiff   150,000 
River Thame 
Conservation Trust Oxford   150,000 
Ballinderry Rivers Trust Cookstown   140,000 
Don Catchment 
Rivers Trust Doncaster   120,000 
Chichester Harbour Trust Chichester   100,000 *
Kent Wildlife Trust Maidstone   100,000 *
National Biodiversity 
Network Trust Nottingham   100,000 
Ouse & Adur Rivers Trust Pulborough   100,000 
Royal Zoological Society 
of Scotland Edinburgh   100,000 
Severn Rivers Trust Worcester   100,000 
Soil Association Bristol   100,000 
The National Lobster 
Hatchery Padstow   100,000 
The Wildlife Trust for Bedfordshire,
Cambridgeshire and 
Northamptonshire Cambridge   100,000 *
Tyne Rivers Trust Corbridge   100,000 
The Country Trust Chelmsford     90,000 
New Philanthropy Capital London     80,000 
Thames21 Ltd London     75,000 
The Wye and Usk 
Foundation Brecon     75,000 

Garfield Weston Foundation  51



Cumbria Wildlife Trust Kendal     60,000  
The Media Trust London     60,000  
West Wales Rivers Trust Haverfordwest     60,000  
Bristol Avon Rivers Trust Warmley     50,000  
Friends of Westonbirt 
Arboretum Tetbury     50,000  
Northumberland 
Rivers Trust Rothbury     50,000  
Ocean Generation London     50,000  
Scottish Seabird Centre North Berwick     50,000  
The Lancashire 
Wildlife Trust Preston     50,000  
The Lune Rivers Trust Morecambe     50,000  
West Cumbria 
Rivers Trust Ltd Keswick     50,000  
Brogdale Collections Faversham     40,000  
EcoACTIVE London     40,000  
Plymouth Marine 
Laboratory Plymouth     40,000  
Sylva Foundation Long Wittenham     40,000  
South Cumbria 
Rivers Trust Ltd Ulverston     38,000  
The Arun & Rother 
Rivers Trust Petworth     35,000  
The Aire Rivers Trust Bradford     32,000  
Conservation Education 
& Research Trust Oxford     30,000  
Herefordshire Wildlife 
Trust Leominster     30,000  
The David Shepherd 
Wildlife Foundation Guildford     30,000  
The Froglife Trust Peterborough     30,000  
We Are Grow Barnet     30,000  
Wiltshire Wildlife Trust Devizes     30,000  
Woodmeadow Trust York     30,000  
Durham Wildlife Trust Tyne and Wear     25,000  
Dynamic Earth 
Charitable Trust Edinburgh     25,000  
North Wales 
Rivers Trust Ltd Chester     25,000  
Small Woods Association Telford     25,000  
Society for Horticultural 
Therapy Reading     25,000  
Welsh Dee Trust Llangollen     25,000  
Marine Research and 
Conservation Foundation Lydeard St Lawrence    22,000  
Total for Environment 12,027,000
(Total number of grants: 63)

Faith  £
St James's Piccadilly St Albans  500,000 * 
Lichfield Cathedral Lichfield  150,000  
Truro Cathedral Truro    50,000  
Ballysillan Youth 
For Christ Belfast    40,000  
St Mary the Virgin Church Greenhithe    40,000 * 
Wakefield Cathedral Wakefield    40,000  
Ely Cathedral Trust Ely    35,000  
Daventry Contact Daventry    30,000  

Drighlington Methodist 
Church Drighlington    30,000 * 
Kick London Richmond    30,000  
St Georges Church 
Fatfield PCC Washington    30,000 * 
St Matthew's Church,
Carver Street Sheffield    30,000 * 
St Paul's Church Mold    30,000  
Stones Methodist Church Rippondon    30,000 * 
The Norwich Historic 
Churches Trust Ltd Norwich    30,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of All Souls,
Langham Place London    30,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Newark On Trent 
St Mary Magdalene with 
St Leonard Newark    30,000 * 
West London Mission London    30,000  
Wilmslow Youth  Wilmslow    30,000  
Bradford Cathedral Bradford    25,000  
Chesterton Methodist 
Church Cambridge    25,000 * 
Friends of Fawley 
Church Charity Henley-on-Thames    25,000 * 
Heaton Baptist Church, Newcastle upon Tyne   25,000  
His Place Hastings    25,000  
Holy Trinity 
Headington Quarry Oxford    25,000 * 
Ibrox Parish 
Church Of Scotland Glasgow    25,000  
Nafferton Methodist 
Church Driffield    25,000  
PCC of Ss Simon & Jude 
Church, Castlethorpe Milton Keynes    25,000  
Rock Community Church Dumbarton    25,000  
St Andrew's 
Church of Scotland Moffat    25,000 * 
St Berteline and 
St Christopher Church Runcorn    25,000  
St Botolph without 
Aldgate London    25,000 * 
St Christopher, 
Springfield Birmingham    25,000 * 
St John the Evangelist 
Church, Donisthorpe Swadlincote    25,000 * 
St Leonard's Church,
Aldrington  Hove    25,000  
St Mary Magdalene Church, 
Stoke Bishop Bristol    25,000 * 
St Peter's Brighton    25,000  
St Boniface Church, 
Whipton Exeter    25,000  
St Wilfrid's Church, 
Lidget Green Bradford    25,000  
The Collegiate Church 
of St Mary Warwick    25,000  
The Parish Trust  Trethomas    25,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of All Saints Fleet    25,000 * 
The PCC of the Parish of 
St John Baptist, Claines Worcester    25,000 * 
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The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Christ Church with 
All Saints Spitalfields London    25,000  
West Street 
Christian Fellowship Crewe    25,000  
Total for Faith 1,865,000
(Total number of grants: 45) 

Health  £
Addenbrooke's 
Charitable Trust Cambridge 2,000,000  
Guy's and St Thomas' 
Foundation London 1,000,000  
London School of Hygiene 
& Tropical Medicine  London  500,000 * 
Place2Be London  500,000  
Alder Hey 
Children's Charity Liverpool  300,000  
Changing Faces London  300,000  
Mental Health 
Innovations London  300,000  
The University 
of Sheffield Sheffield  250,000  
Bipolar UK Ltd London  150,000  
Northwick Park Institute 
for Medical Research  Harrow  150,000  
Cystic Fibrosis Trust London  100,000  
Duchenne UK London  100,000  
The Bobath Centre for Children 
with Cerebral Palsy Watford  100,000  
The Brain and Spine 
Foundation London  100,000  
The Cellar Trust Shipley  100,000  
The Martlets Hospice Hove  100,000  
The Royal Society for 
Blind Children London  100,000  
British Liver Trust Winchester    90,000  
NMC Midlands Ltd Coventry    90,000  
Roald Dahl's Marvellous 
Children's Charity Amersham    90,000  
Tenovus Cancer Care Cardiff    90,000  
Tinnitus UK Sheffield    90,000  
Bliss London    75,000  
Wings for Life UK London    75,000  
Brain Injury Matters (NI) Belfast    60,000  
Melanoma Focus Cambridge    60,000  
The Anne Robson Trust Stevenage    60,000  
The Brain Charity Liverpool    60,000  
Visyon Ltd Congleton    60,000  
Bibic Langport    50,000  
Middlesbrough and 
Stockton Mind Ltd Middlesbrough    50,000  
National Rheumatoid 
Arthritis Society Maidenhead    50,000  
OCD Action London    50,000  
The British Allergy 
Foundation Sidcup    50,000  
The Counselling and 
Family Centre Altrincham    50,000  

University Hospitals Bristol 
& Weston Charity  Bristol    50,000 
Brent Adolescent Centre London    45,000 
The Auditory Verbal 
Centre London    45,000 
The Laura Centre Leicester    45,000 
The Source Young 
People's Charity Aldershot    45,000 
Ataxia UK London    40,000 
Bluebell Care Trust Bristol    40,000 
Child Brain Injury Trust Bicester    40,000 
East Cheshire Hospice Macclesfield    40,000 *
Ty Hafan  Penarth    35,000 
Acorns Children's 
Hospice Trust Birmingham    30,000 
Amicus Trust  Bedford    30,000 
Blue Smile Project Cambridge    30,000 
Brainstrust Isle of Wight    30,000 
British Epilepsy 
Association Leeds    30,000 
Changing Lives Charity Clevedon    30,000 
Coping With Cancer 
– North East Annitsford    30,000 
CW+, the charity for Chelsea 
and Westminster NHS 
Foundation Trust London    30,000 *
Fight 4 Change London    30,000 
Havering Mind Hornchurch    30,000 
IPSUM Swindon    30,000 
Lambeth and 
Southwark Mind London    30,000 
Mind Monmouthshire Abergavenny    30,000 
Music Support UK London    30,000 
RICE; The Research 
Institute for the Care 
of Older People Bath    30,000 
Self Injury Support Ltd Bristol    30,000 
Shine Peterborough    30,000 
Sickle Cell Society London    30,000 
Speakeasy Ramsbottom, Bury    30,000 
SWFT Charity Warwick    30,000 *
The Big C Appeal Ltd Norwich    30,000 
The Hugs Foundation Bodmin    30,000 
The Sussex Beacon  Brighton    30,000 
Women's Counselling and 
Therapy Service Ltd Leeds    30,000 
Action for Pulmonary 
Fibrosis (APF) Peterborough    25,000 
Beacon Counselling Stockport    25,000 
Brecon Mountain 
Rescue Team Brecon    25,000 *
Brighter Futures (Great Western
Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust Charitable Fund) Swindon    25,000 
Buckinghamshire Healthcare 
NHS Trust Charitable 
Fund Amersham    25,000 *
Chapter 
(West Cheshire) Ltd Ellesmere Port    25,000 
Chilterns MS Centre Ltd Aylesbury    25,000 
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Cobalt Health Cheltenham    25,000 * 
Countess Mountbatten 
Hospice Charity Ltd Southampton    25,000  
Croydon Voluntary Association 
for the Blind Croydon    25,000  
Doctors of the World UK England    25,000  
Dyspraxia Foundation Hitchin    25,000  
Epilepsy Scotland Glasgow    25,000  
Evelina Children's 
Heart Organisation London    25,000  
Headway Norfolk and 
Waveney Ltd Norwich    25,000  
Health in Mind Edinburgh    25,000  
Heartbeat Northwest 
Cardiac Care Preston    25,000  
Hope for Tomorrow Tetbury    25,000 * 
Huntingtons Disease 
Association Liverpool    25,000  
Hyperlipidaemia Education 
& Atherosclerosis Research 
Trust UK Maidenhead    25,000  
Mind in Tower Hamlets 
and Newham London    25,000  
Mothers for Mothers Bristol    25,000  
Multiple Sclerosis Therapy 
Centre Lothian Ltd Edinburgh    25,000  
Nightingale House 
Hospice Wrexham    25,000  
Norwich Samaritans Norwich    25,000 * 
Off The Record – 
South East Hampshire Havant    25,000  
Race Against Dementia London    25,000  
Sight Advice South Lakes Kendal    25,000  
South Kent Mind Folkestone    25,000  
StreetDoctors  London    25,000  
The Healthy Living 
Platform London    25,000  
The Hut York Ltd York    25,000  
The Parent Rooms Ltd Belfast    25,000  
The Sussex Association 
for Spina Bifida and 
Hydrocephalus Heathfield    25,000  
The Womenstec 
(Training, Enterprise & 
Childcare Centre) Belfast    25,000  
Weston Hospicecare Weston-super-Mare    25,000 * 
Youth Talk St Albans    25,000  
Total for Health 9,420,000
(Total number of grants: 106)

Museums & Heritage  £
Imperial War Museums London  1,500,000 * 
National Art 
Collections Fund London  1,000,000  
Royal Hospital Chelsea 
Appeal Ltd London     300,000 * 
The Foundling Museum London     300,000 * 
The English Heritage 
Trust London     250,000  
Beth Shalom Ltd Nottingham     100,000  

Chatham Historic 
Dockyard Trust Chatham     100,000  
Clyne Heritage Society Brora     100,000  
Glencoe Folk Museum Glencoe     100,000  
Kent Mining 
Heritage Foundation Deal     100,000  
The Stowe House 
Preservation Trust Stowe     100,000  
Wentworth Woodhouse 
Preservation Trust Rotherham     100,000  
Heritage Trust 
of Lincolnshire Sleaford       95,000 * 
Folkestone Leas Lift 
Company CIO Folkestone       85,000 * 
Hampshire Cultural Trust Winchester       75,000  
Herefordshire Museum 
Service Support Group Hereford       75,000  
The Brunel Museum London       60,000  
The Cromwell Museum Huntingdon       60,000  
Dacorum Heritage 
Trust Ltd Berkhamsted       50,000  
Friends of The Vigilance Brixham       50,000  
Historylinks Building Appeal, 
Dornoch Heritage Soc Dornoch       50,000 * 
Trimontium Trust SCIO Galashiels       50,000 * 
Weald & Downland Open 
Air Living Museum Ltd Singleton       50,000  
Lord Leycester Hospital Warwick       40,000  
Migration Museum 
Project London       40,000  
National Paralympic 
Heritage Trust Aylesbury       40,000  
The Weardale Museum Bishop Auckland       40,000 * 
Cornwall Heritage Trust Redruth       30,000  
Steamship Shieldhall 
Charity Eastleigh       30,000  
Total for Museums & Heritage 4,970,000
(Total number of grants: 29)

Welfare  £
Frontline London  750,000  
The Cranfield Trust Romsey  300,000  
Family Fund York  300,000  
One Small Thing  London  250,000  
National Star Foundation Cheltenham  250,000  
Camphill Rudolf Steiner 
Schools Ltd Aberdeen  200,000  
Camphill Milton Keynes 
Communities Ltd Milton Keynes  200,000  
Shannon Trust London  150,000  
Mary's Meals Glasgow  150,000  
Grandparents Plus London  150,000  
Gingerbread London  150,000  
Arise Foundation London  120,000  
Thornage Hall 
Independent Living  Holt  100,000 * 
Refuge London  100,000  
Prison Reform Trust London  100,000  
Passage 2000 London  100,000  
Missing People Ltd London  100,000  
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Human Rights Watch London  100,000  
HARP Southend Southend-on-Sea  100,000  
Women's Work 
Derbyshire Ltd Derby    90,000  
West End 
Refugee Service Newcastle    90,000  
SATEDA Sittingbourne    90,000  
Emmaus Sheffield Sheffield    90,000  
Cardinal Hume Centre London    90,000  
Cardiff Women's Aid Cardiff    90,000  
Pause Creating Space 
for Change London    80,000  
LD:NorthEast Wallsend    80,000  
Positive Action 
in Housing Glasgow    75,000  
Cleveland Housing 
Advice Centre (CHAC) Middlesbrough    75,000  
WomenCentre Ltd Halifax    70,000  
Young Roots Croydon    60,000  
Sir Oswald Stoll 
Foundation London    60,000  
Resolve Welwyn Garden City    60,000  
Refugee Resource Oxford    60,000  
Kairos Women 
Working Together Coventry    60,000  
Donnington Doorstep Oxford    60,000  
Coventry Refugee and 
Migrant Centre Coventry    60,000  
Child Bereavement UK Loudwater    60,000  
Beating Time London    60,000  
Your Place (London) Ltd London    50,000  
Working Families London    50,000  
Voices in Exile Brighton    50,000  
Trust House Lancashire Preston    50,000  
The Suzy Lamplugh Trust London    50,000  
The Carers Centre – Bristol & 
South Gloucestershire Fishponds    50,000  
Tempus Novo 
(Meaning New Time) Leeds    50,000  
St Paul's Hostel Worcester    50,000  
Rock Foundation UK Ltd Grimsby    50,000  
Riding for the Disabled Association 
Inc. Carriage Driving Shrewley    50,000  
Rainbow Child and 
Family Centre Londonderry    50,000  
Playskill Watford    50,000  
Onwards & Upwards London    50,000  
One25 Bristol    50,000  
NIACRO Belfast    50,000  
Monklands Women's Aid Airdrie    50,000  
Manna House (Cumbria)  Kendal    50,000  
Listening Books London    50,000  
Juno Women's Aid Nottingham    50,000  
Home-Start Essex Maldon    50,000  
Hackney Doorways London    50,000  
Forest School Camps Ely    50,000  
Fair Shot London    50,000  
Exmoor Calvert Trust Barnstaple    50,000  
Derby City Mission Derby    50,000  

Cotswold Friends Moreton-in-Marsh    50,000 
Churches Housing 
Aid Society Bristol    50,000 
Bristol Refugee Rights Bristol    50,000 
Age UK Gateshead Ltd Gateshead    50,000 
The Compassionate 
Friends London    45,000 
Street Teams Walsall    45,000 
Oxford Against Cutting London    45,000 
Notre Dame 
Refugee Centre London    45,000 
Newhall Kidz Ltd Wakefield    45,000 
Mentor Link Stourport-on-Severn    45,000 
Home-Start Nottingham Nottingham    45,000 
Harrow Association of 
Disabled People Harrow    45,000 
Euan's Guide Edinburgh    45,000 
Community Impact 
Bucks Monks Risborough    45,000 
Children First Derby Derby    45,000 
Caring Hands  Newcastle upon Tyne  45,000 
Care and Repair  Edinburgh    45,000 
AMAT UK Chatham    45,000 
West Yorkshire Community 
Chaplaincy Project Leeds    40,000 
Watford Sheltered 
Workshop Ltd Watford    40,000 
Trafford Domestic 
Abuse Services Trafford    40,000 
The Snowdrop Project Sheffield    40,000 
The Bridge 
(East Midlands) Loughborough    40,000 
Suffolk Refugee Support Ipswich    40,000 
Space4Autism Macclesfield    40,000 
Southside Family Project Bath    40,000 
Saint John of God 
Hospitaller Services Darlington    40,000 
Rowan Humberstone Cambridge    40,000 
Re-engage London    40,000 
Possibilities for Each and 
Every Kid PEEK Glasgow    40,000 
Newlife the Charity for 
Disabled Children Cannock    40,000 
Interest Link Borders Duns    40,000 
Home-Start Manchester Manchester    40,000 
Headway (Leicestershire, 
Leicester & Rutland) Leicester    40,000 
Fylde Coast Women's Aid Blackpool    40,000 
Families United Network Luton    40,000 
Dementia Friendly 
Communities Ltd Helmsdale    40,000 
Berkshire Women's Aid Reading    40,000 
Beyond Food Foundation London    35,000 
Yellow Submarine 
Holidays Oxford    30,000 
Yellow Door Southampton    30,000 
West Cumbria Domestic 
Violence Support Workington    30,000 
Watford New Hope Trust  Watford    30,000 
Upbeat Communties Ltd Derby    30,000 
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Umbrella Derby and 
Derbyshire Derby    30,000  
Transforming Choice Liverpool    30,000  
Together Dementia 
Support Manchester    30,000  
The Pankhurst Trust 
(Inc. Manchester 
Women's Aid) Manchester    30,000  
The OASIS Partnership High Wycombe    30,000  
The NOAH Enterprise 
(New Opportunities 
and Horizons) Luton    30,000  
The Motherhood Plan York    30,000  
The Living Room Stevenage    30,000  
The Living Paintings 
Trust  Newbury    30,000  
The Kings Hedges Family 
Support Project Cambridge    30,000  
The Hamlet Centre Trust  Norwich    30,000  
Streetwise Opera London    30,000  
Street Storage Hackney    30,000  
Stick 'n' Step Wirral    30,000  
Stanley Grange 
Community Association Samlesbury    30,000  
St Michael's Fellowship London    30,000  
St Richard of Chichester 
Christian Care 
Association Chichester    30,000  
St David's Diocesan Council 
for Social Responsibility  Dyfed    30,000  
Spinal Injuries 
Association Milton Keynes    30,000  
Southampton City and 
Region Action to 
Combat Hardship Southampton    30,000  
SIBS – for Brothers 
and Sisters Oxenhope    30,000  
Riverside Community 
Trust Ayr    30,000  
Reducing the Risk of 
Domestic Abuse Oxford    30,000  
Reaching Families Ltd Littlehampton    30,000  
Rainbow Haven Manchester    30,000  
Providence Row Charity London    30,000  
Parenting Special 
Children Reading    30,000  
Oswin Project Bothal    30,000  
Off The Streets Westcliff-on-Sea    30,000  
Off The Fence Trust Ltd Hove    30,000  
Oasis Cardiff Cardiff    30,000  
Oakfield 
(Easton Maudit) Ltd Northampton    30,000 * 
North of England  Newcastle upon 
Refugee Service Tyne    30,000  
National Ugly Mugs  Manchester    30,000  
Mums in Need Sheffield    30,000  
Marie Collins Foundation Ripon    30,000  
Little Village London    30,000  
Link to Change Bedford    30,000  
Link Age Southwark London    30,000  
Lifecentre Chichester    30,000  

Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 
Anti-Violence and 
Policing Group London    30,000  
Kids Matter London    30,000  
INSIGHT Counselling, Coaching 
& Support Services Bedworth    30,000  
Inquest Charitable Trust  London    30,000  
Home-Start 
Staffordshire Moorlands Leek    30,000  
Home-Start North 
East Worcestershire Reddtich    30,000  
Home-Start Kernow Bodmin    30,000  
Home-Start Hertfordshire Stevenage    30,000  
Home-Start Hampshire Wickham    30,000  
Home-Start 
Cambridgeshire Papworth Everard    30,000  
HENRY Witney    30,000  
Growing Works Huddersfield    30,000  
Grampian Society 
for the Blind Aberdeen    30,000  
Family Support 
Derbyshire Derby    30,000  
Family Help 
Darlington CIO Darlington    30,000  
Families Outside Edinburgh    30,000  
Edinburgh Women's Aid Edinburgh    30,000  
Early Years Scotland Glasgow    30,000  
Down's Syndrome 
Association Teddington    30,000  
Disability Cornwall and 
Isles of Scilly Hayle    30,000  
Crossroads Derbyshire Glossop    30,000  
CHESS Homeless Chelmsford    30,000  
Cherry Trees Guildford    30,000  
Catalyst Housing Ltd  Ealing    30,000 * 
Caring in Bristol Bristol    30,000  
Carefreespace London    30,000  
Canterbury and District 
Early Years Project Canterbury    30,000  
Aurora New Dawn Portsmouth    30,000  
Asylum Link Merseyside Liverpool    30,000  
Arts 4 Dementia London    30,000  
Age UK Sutton Sutton    30,000  
Age Concern 
North Norfolk Sheringham    30,000  
Afghanistan and Central 
Asian Association London    30,000  
Action Foundation Newcastle upon Tyne  30,000  
Action for Family Carers Maldon    30,000  
Aanchal Women's Aid Essex    30,000  
Global Link (Lancaster) Lancaster    28,000  
White Lodge Centre Chertsey    25,000  
The Wallich Cardiff    25,000  
The Spires Centre London    25,000  
The Portman House Trust London    25,000  
The Nelson Trust Stroud    25,000  
The Matthew Project Norwich    25,000  
The Key –
Unlock Potential Bristol    25,000 * 
The Hardman Trust Isle of Wight    25,000  
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STAR (Student Action 
for Refugees) London    25,000  
Spitalfields Crypt Trust London    25,000  
SPACE Stanstead Abbotts    25,000  
Smart Criminal 
Justice Services Bedford    25,000  
Sixty-One Bristol    25,000  
Signpost Luton Luton    25,000  
Shared Lives Plus Liverpool    25,000  
Savera UK Merseyside    25,000  
Rotherham Rise Rotherham    25,000 * 
Refugee Acton Kingston London    25,000  
Recovery Cymru 
Community Cardiff    25,000  
Rape and Sexual 
Abuse Support Centre 
(North Wales) Bangor    25,000  
Rainbow Services  Harlow    25,000  
Praxis Community 
Projects London    25,000  
Possability People Ltd Brighton    25,000  
Peter Bedford 
Housing Association London    25,000  
My Sisters' House CIO Bognor Regis    25,000  
Mosac London    25,000  
Merton Mencap Morden    25,000  
Liberty Choir UK Hastings    25,000  
Impact Initiatives Brighton    25,000  
Home-Start Norfolk Swaffham    25,000  
HealthBus Trust Bournemouth    25,000  
Hackney Playbus London    25,000  
Glow - Giving Life Opportunities 
to Women Belfast    25,000  
Generate Opportunities 
Ltd London    25,000  
Freedom Community 
Project Bolsover    25,000  
Food Train  Dumfries    25,000  
First Stop Darlington Darlington    25,000  
First Step 
Community Project Musselburgh    25,000  
Finding Your Feet Paisley    25,000  
Feeding Families Blaydon    25,000  
Family Action London    25,000  
Essex Dementia Care Braintree    25,000  
ESCAPE 
Family Ltd Ashington    25,000  
EFA London London    25,000  
Down's Syndrome 
Scotland Glasgow    25,000  
Domestic Abuse Volunteer 
Support Services Tunbridge Wells    25,000  
Clear Emotional Trauma 
and Therapy Specialists Truro    25,000  
Children on the 
Autistic Spectrum 
Parents' Association Bromley    25,000  

CHARIS (Christian Help 
& Action for Refugees 
in Somerset) Taunton    25,000 
Chaos Theory Woodford Green    25,000 
Caritas Diocese 
of Shrewsbury Wirral    25,000 
Calan DVS Ltd Neath    25,000 
BOSP Brighter Opportunities 
for Special People Pitsea    25,000 
Borderlands 
(South West) Ltd Bristol    25,000 
Ballymoney Evergreen 
Club Ballymoney    25,000 
Ashford Place London    25,000 
Apex Charitable Trust St Helens    25,000 
Alzheimer's Support Devizes    25,000 
Alternatives Trust 
East London London    25,000
Aid Box Community Bristol    25,000 
Age UK Hillingdon, 
Harrow and Brent Hayes    25,000 
Age UK 
Barrow and District Barrow-in-Furness    25,000 
Age Concern Salford  Manchester    25,000 
Abigail Housing Leeds    25,000 
4Sight Vision Support Bognor Regis    25,000 
Total for Welfare 12,128,000
(Total number of grants: 250)

Youth  £
West London Zone London   500,000 
Carers Trust Rugby  225,000 
One YMCA Watford  200,000 
SHiFT Organisation Ltd London  200,000 
Action for Children Watford  150,000 
Cumbria Community 
Foundation  Cockermouth  150,000 
Move On Glasgow  150,000 
NE Youth Blaydon-on-Tyne  150,000 
Youthnet UK London  150,000 
Barnardo's Ilford    98,000 
Empire Fighting Chance Bristol    90,000 
Winning Scotland 
Foundation Edinburgh    90,000 
ReachOut Youth  London    80,000 
The Rock Trust Edinburgh    80,000 
Young Enterprise 
Northern Ireland   Belfast    80,000 
Aleto Foundation London    75,000 
LGBT Youth Scotland Edinburgh    75,000 
Sporting Marvels Rhondda Cynon Taf    75,000 
Motiv8 South  Portsmouth    70,000 
Cathedral Youth Club Londonderry    60,000 
Endeavour Training Ltd Sheffield    60,000 
Goldhill Play Association Leicester    60,000 
Kidz Klub - Leeds Leeds    60,000 
New Horizon 
Youth Centre London    60,000 
One In A Million (Sports) Bradford    60,000 
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Positive View Foundation Dover    60,000  
Team Oasis Liverpool    60,000  
The Door Youth Project Stroud    60,000  
The Key  Newcastle upon Tyne 60,000  
Youth Action 
Northern Ireland Ltd Belfast    60,000  
Youth Concern Aylesbury    60,000  
Action4Youth Aylesbury    50,000  
Cramlington Voluntary 
Youth Project Ltd Cramlington    50,000  
Fight for Peace 
International  London    50,000  
Fitzrovia Youth in Action London    50,000  
Milton Keynes YMCA Ltd Milton Keynes    50,000  
Shaftesbury Youth Club Wirral    50,000  
South Marches 
Scouts Council Hereford    50,000 * 
The Breck Foundation Whyteleafe    50,000  
The Lord's Taverners London    50,000  
Whirlow Hall Farm 
Trust Ltd Sheffield    50,000  
Youth Sport Trust Loughborough    50,000  
Drop Zone Youth 
Projects Barrow-in-Furness    45,000  
Front Lounge Dundee    45,000  
Granton Youth Ltd Edinburgh    45,000  
Hackney Quest London    45,000  
Reidvale Adventure Play 
Association Ltd Glasgow    45,000  
The Benjamin 
Foundation Norwich    45,000  
YMCA Brunel Group Bath    44,000  
HorseWorld Bristol    40,000  
Junction 12 Glasgow    40,000  
Leatherhead Youth 
Project Leatherhead    40,000  
London Youth Games London    40,000  
Marches Family Network Hereford    40,000  
St Andrew's Club London    40,000  
The Enthusiasm Trust Derby    40,000  
The Gorbals Youth Run 
Drop In Cafe Glasgow    40,000  
The Money Charity London    40,000  
The Welsh Association 
of Youth Clubs Pontypridd    40,000  
Verbal  Derry/Londonderry    40,000  
Dundee North West 
Community Sports Club Dundee    35,000 * 
Khulisa London    35,000  
Tullochan Dumbarton    35,000  
Alabaré Christian Care 
and Support Salisbury    30,000  
Avon Youth Club Bristol    30,000  
Bumpy Ltd Birstall    30,000  
Canongate Youth (SCIO) Edinburgh    30,000  
Children's Sailing Trust Helston    30,000  
Clarkes Mead Trust Henfield    30,000 * 
Egremont Youth 
Partnership Egremont    30,000  

Girvan Youth Trust Girvan    30,000  
Hebridean Pursuits 
Outdoor Learning Oban    30,000  
Herts Young 
Homeless Group Hatfield    30,000  
Include Youth Belfast    30,000 * 
It's Your Life London    30,000  
Just Like Us London    30,000  
Key4Life CIO Bristol    30,000  
Level Two Youth Project  Felixstowe    30,000  
Northumberland Federation 
of YMCAs Ashington    30,000  
Regenerate UK  London    30,000  
SkyWay Charity London    30,000  
Small Green Shoots London    30,000  
South Central Youth Ltd London    30,000  
Streatham Youth and 
Community Trust London    30,000 * 
The Caxton Youth Organisation London    
30,000  
The Change Foundation Wallington    30,000  
The Junction Foundation Redcar    30,000  
The Space Cheddar    30,000  
Whoopsadaisy Brighton Brighton    30,000  
Young Lewisham Project 
(Workshop) London    30,000  
Youth Focus: North East Gateshead    30,000  
Active Fusion  Doncaster    25,000  
Alive & Kicking UK London    25,000  
Bath Area Play Project Bath    25,000  
BF Adventure Penryn    25,000  
Boys & Girls Clubs (NI) Belfast    25,000  
Citywise Mentoring Ltd Glasgow    25,000  
Community on 
Solid Ground  Manchester    25,000  
Connah's Quay Unit 91 
of the Sea Cadet Corps Connah's Quay    25,000 * 
Diane Modahl Sports 
Foundation (DMSF) Manchester    25,000  
ESTEEM  Shoreham-by-Sea    25,000  
First Give London    25,000  
Integrate UK  Bristol    25,000  
Kibbleworks Paisley    25,000  
Nightsafe Ltd Blackburn    25,000  
Ormside Mill Residential 
Centre Ltd Cumbria    25,000  
Power The Fight London    25,000  
Queens Park Community 
School PTFA London    25,000 * 
Rugby Gymnastics Club Rugby    25,000  
Scholemoor Beacon CIO Bradford    25,000  
Scottish Environmental & 
Outdoor Education 
Centres Association Biggar    25,000  
Spark! (Hounslow Education 
Business Charity) Brentford    25,000  
Sparkle (South Wales) Newport    25,000  
Sussex Clubs for 
Young People Worthing    25,000  
Swings & Smiles Thatcham    25,000  
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The Eikon Charity Addlestone    25,000  
The Kids Network London    25,000  
The Machan Trust  Larkhall    25,000  
The Mix Stowmarket Stowmarket    25,000  
The Providence 
House Trust London    25,000  
The Pushkin Trust Newtownstewart    25,000  
The Rock  Cheltenham    25,000  
Warning Zone  Leicester    25,000  
West London YMCA London    25,000  
Worcestershire 
YMCA Ltd Redditch    25,000  
YMCA Newcastle Newcastle upon Tyne  25,000  
Youth Options Romsey    25,000  
Total for Youth 6,557,000
(Total number of grants: 127) 

Other  £
Fine Cell Work London  330,000 
ACEVO London  80,000 
Total for Other 410,000
(Total number of grants: 2)

Grants of £20,000 and less

Arts  £
Cartwheel Arts Heywood 20,000  
Clerkenwell Green 
Association London 20,000  
Dancers' Career 
Development London 20,000  
Drunken Chorus Croydon 20,000  
Echo Echo Dance 
Theatre Company Londonderry 20,000  
Fallen Angels 
Dance Theatre Chester 20,000  
Fighting Words 
Northern Ireland Belfast 20,000  
Geese Theatre 
Company Ltd  Birmingham 20,000  
Good Vibrations 
(Music) Ltd London 20,000  
Hubbub Theatre 
Company Derby 20,000  
Kabosh Belfast 20,000  
Khayaal Theatre 
Company Luton 20,000  
Lyric Hammersmith 
Theatre London 20,000  
Magpie Dance Bromley 20,000  
Miracle Theatre 
Trust Ltd Redruth 20,000  
Movema Liverpool 20,000  
Murley Silver Band Fivemiletown 20,000 * 
Northampton Arts 
Collective Ltd  Northampton 20,000  
Peut-Etre Theatre Ltd London 20,000  
RABBLE Theatre Reading 20,000  
Scene & Heard London 20,000  

Skimstone Arts Newcastle upon Tyne 20,000 
Stanley Arts London 20,000 
The Ark-T Centre Oxford 20,000 
The Creative Art House Wakefield 20,000 
The Factory of Creativity Manchester 20,000 
The Forget-Me-Not 
Chorus Cardiff Penarth 20,000 
The OHMI Trust Birmingham 20,000 
The Open 
Theatre Company Coventry 20,000 
The Voices Foundation London 20,000 
Ulster Youth Orchestra Belfast 20,000 
Underexposed Arts  London 20,000 
Viva Chamber 
Orchestra Ltd Derby 20,000 
Farnham Maltings 
Association Ltd Farnham 15,000 
Feltham Arts 
Association Ltd Feltham 15,000 
Gabrieli London 15,000 
Hastings Philharmonic 
Orchestra St Leonards-on-Sea 15,000 
Hofesh Shechter 
Company Ltd London 15,000 
Ignite Imaginations Sheffield 15,000 
James Menzies-Kitchin 
Memorial Trust Stratford-upon-Avon 15,000 
Kent Film Foundation Ramsgate 15,000 
MAKE Southwest Newton Abbot 15,000 
Marlborough Theatre 
Productions Ltd Brighton 15,000 
New Diorama London 15,000 
Newhampton Arts 
Centre Wolverhampton 15,000 
North Yorkshire Youth 
Music Action Zone York 15,000 
November Club Morpeth 15,000 
Room 13 International  Fort William 15,000 
Savvy Theatre Company London 15,000 
Sonic Bothy Glasgow 15,000 
Spectacle Theatre Ltd Porth 15,000 
Strange Town Edinburgh 15,000 
The Makers Guild 
in Wales Cardiff 15,000 
The Play House Birmingham 15,000 
ThinkTank Theatre (Streatham 
Space Project) London 15,000 
Todmorden Amateur Operatic 
and Dramatic Society Todmorden 15,000 
Trestle Theatre 
Company Ltd St Albans 15,000 
Tricky Hat Productions Glasgow 15,000 
Trinity Community Arts Bristol 15,000 
Upswing Aerial Ltd London 15,000 
Young Music Makers 
of Dyfed Llantwit Major 15,000 
The Cambridge 
Philharmonic Society Cambridge 14,000 
All or Nothing Aerial 
Dance Theatre Edinburgh 10,000 
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Angel Shed 
Theatre Company London 10,000  
B:Music Ltd Birmingham 10,000  
Big Brum Theatre in 
Education Company Ltd Birmingham 10,000  
Brassneck Theatre 
Company Belfast 10,000  
Celf o Gwmpas Llandrindod Wells 10,000  
Compass Live Art Ltd Leeds 10,000  
Drake Music Project 
Northern Ireland Newry 10,000  
Ensemble Reza Haywards Heath 10,000  
Fusion Plus Havant 10,000  
Guildford Shakespeare 
Company Trust Ltd Guildford 10,000  
In Your Space Circus Ltd Derry 10,000  
Lochgelly Band Lochgelly 10,000 * 
Lymearts Community 
Trust Ltd  Lyme Regis 10,000  
MillArts Centre Trust Banbury 10,000  
Milton Keynes IAC Milton Keynes 10,000  
Moving Parts Arts CIO Newcastle upon Tyne 10,000  
Music Theatre Wales Cardiff 10,000  
New Note Projects Brighton 10,000  
Olympias Music 
Foundation Manchester 10,000  
Performing Room Northampton 10,000  
Pimlico Opera Alresford 10,000  
Plymouth Arts Cinema Plymouth 10,000  
Red Note Ensemble Ltd Edinburgh 10,000  
The Bright Umbrella 
Drama Co. Belfast 10,000  
The Lawnmowers Independent 
Theatre Company Gateshead 10,000  
The Rodolfus Foundation London 10,000  
Travelling Light 
Theatre Company Bristol 10,000  
Multi-Story Music London   8,000  
All Arts & Media Ltd Manchester   7,500  
Book Music & Lyrics London   7,500  
Conflux Scotland Ltd Glasgow   7,500  
Cartwheel Arts Heywood   6,500  
RicNic London   6,500  
Arts Gateway MK  Milton Keynes   5,000  
Creative Futures (UK) Ltd London   5,000  
Dr Martin Clarke Young 
Organ Scholars' Trust Windsor   5,000  
Dunfermline Junior 
Chorus Fife   5,000  
Garage Art Group Evesham   5,000  
Irvine & Dreghorn 
Brass Band Irvine   5,000  
Montgomeryshire 
Youth Theatre Welshpool   5,000  
Queen Elizabeth Scholarship 
Trust Ltd London   5,000  
Septura London   5,000  
Swansea City Opera  Brecon   5,000  
WorleWind Band Wick St Lawrence   5,000  
The St Paul's Arts Trust London   4,000  

Raise the Roof (NI) Glarryford   3,000  
Sudden Productions Birmingham   3,000  
The Grand Union 
Music Theatre Ltd London   3,000  
Speech Bubble (SCIO) Glasgow   2,500  
Arts Dream Selsey Selsey   2,000  
Royal Opera House Covent 
Garden Foundation London      508  
Total for Arts 1,490,508
(Total number of grants: 114)

Community  £
Community@NE66 
Charitable Trust Alnwick  20,000  
Rotherham Federation 
of Communities Rotherham  20,000  
Aylsham & District 
Care Trust Aylsham  20,000  
Forthspring Inter-community 
Group Belfast  20,000  
Heard Organisation Ltd London  20,000  
Humans MCR  Manchester  20,000  
Watton Sports and 
Recreational Centre Thetford  20,000  
Gloucester Foodbank Gloucester  20,000  
IT Schools Africa Cheltenham  20,000  
Churn Project Limited Cirencester  20,000  
East Midlands Crossroads – 
Caring for Carers Nottingham  20,000  
Harmony Youth Project Bolton  20,000  
Partnerships for 
Wellbeing Inverness  20,000  
The Centre for African 
Entrepreneurship Swansea  20,000  
The Furniture Helpline Bordon  20,000  
Caryford Community 
Hall Association Castle Cary  20,000  
IMO Charity Blackburn  20,000  
Escape Community 
Art in Action Stratford-upon-Avon  20,000  
Dingle Multi Agency 
Centre Ltd Liverpool  20,000  
Strathfoyle Women's 
Activity Group Ltd Londonderry  20,000  
YMCA Walsall Walsall  20,000  
Hidden Treasure 
Trust CIO Manchester  20,000  
South Islay Development Isle of Islay  20,000 * 
Redeeming Our 
Communities Manchester  20,000  
Victoria Centre Wellingborough  20,000  
The Ridge SCIO Dunbar  20,000 * 
Bentilee Volunteers CIO Stoke-on-Trent  20,000  
CoStar Partnership Cwmbran  20,000  
Ideas Test Chatham  20,000  
Home-Start 
Camden and Islington London  20,000  
Carer Support Wiltshire Trowbridge  20,000  
North Bristol 
Advice Centre Bristol  20,000  
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Ray Ceredigion Aberaeron  20,000  
Space2 Leeds Leeds  20,000  
Lifeline Community 
Action Newton Aycliffe  15,000  
Sport at the Heart London  15,000  
North Glasgow Community 
Food Initiative Glasgow  15,000  
Batemoor and Jordanthorpe 
Community Centre Sheffield  15,000 * 
Christine Dales Goole  15,000  
Dartmouth Caring Dartmouth  15,000  
Millport Town Hall Millport  15,000  
Inverclyde Association 
for Mental Health Greenock  15,000  
Over & Nether Compton 
Memorial Hall Sherborne  15,000  
Benhall & Sternfield 
Ex-servicemen’s Club Saxmundham  15,000  
Ballymacash Sports 
Academy Ltd Lisburn  15,000  
Long Riston Playing 
Fields Committee Hull  15,000  
Moseley Road Baths CIO Birmingham  15,000  
Renfrewshire Foodbank Renfrew  15,000  
Big Help Project Liverpool  15,000 * 
The Bridge Church Bolton  15,000 * 
Wattlesborough 
Village Hall Shrewsbury  15,000 * 
Inspire Inveraray  Inveraray  15,000 * 
The Opening 
Doors Project Liverpool  15,000  
Solid Rock Havercroft Wakefield  15,000 * 
Feeding Coventry Coventry  15,000 * 
Doddridge Centre Ltd Northamptonshire  15,000  
South Yorkshire Chaplaincy 
and Listening Service Sheffield  15,000  
Fornighty Hall Nairn  15,000  
Burnturk & Kettlehill 
Community Trust Cupar  15,000  
Hope Community 
Church Aintree Liverpool  15,000  
Oxfordshire Chinese Community 
& Advice Centre Oxford  15,000  
South Essex 
Community Hub Southend-on-Sea  15,000  
Groundwork Cheshire 
Lancashire & Merseyside Wigan  15,000  
Ravensthorpe Community 
Centre Ltd Dewsbury  15,000  
SLT Building Preservation 
Trust Ltd London  15,000  
Support and Grow 
North East Ltd Tyne & Wear  15,000  
Warm Hut UK Salford  15,000  
South Central Community 
Transport Ltd Liverpool  15,000  
Upper Norwood 
Library Trust London  15,000  
Kilburn Village Institute York  15,000 
Kilmaronock Old 
Kirk Trust Stirling  15,000 

Lorn and Oban Healthy 
Options Ltd Argyll  15,000 
The Brunswick Community 
Development Trust Glasgow  15,000 
The LightBeam Academy Nelson  15,000 
The Llanmorlais and  District 
Community Hall Charity Swansea  15,000 *
Avon Navigation Trust Wyre Piddle  15,000 
BE United Edinburgh  15,000 
North Norfolk 
Community Transport North Walsham  15,000 
Welsh Border 
Community Transport Buckley  15,000 
Blue Box Belper Belper  15,000 *
Eternal Benefits Hull  10,000 
Normandy Community 
Therapy Garden Guildford  10,000 
Whepstead Community 
Association Bury St Edmunds  10,000 
Cambrian Community  Richmond 
Centre  upon Thames  10,000 
Newbigin Community 
Trust Birmingham  10,000 
Somerford ARC 
Community Centre Christchurch  10,000 
The Freshford Village 
Memorial Hall Bath  10,000 
Chelmsford Community 
Transport Chelmsford  10,000 
St Paul's Community 
Development Trust Birmingham  10,000 
Make a Move Bath  10,000 
Ashwick & Oakhill Village Hall 
& Recreation Ground Ashwick  10,000 *
Living Hope  Belfast  10,000 
Spring Bank 
Community Association Hull  10,000 
Colne Open Door 
Centre Ltd Colne  10,000 
Bike For Good Ltd. Glasgow  10,000 
Vineyard Compassion Coleraine  10,000 
New Milton 
Memorial Centre New Milton  10,000 *
Mums United Sheffield  10,000 
Emmaus Suffolk Ipswich  10,000 
Helping Hands Community 
Outreach Project Craigavon  10,000 
Sedbergh Youth & 
Community Centre Bradford  10,000 
Orrell Park & District 
Community Association Liverpool  10,000 
Re:Source Blackburn Blackburn  10,000 *
The Blackmore Vale Charity, 
The Vale Pantry Sturminster Newton  10,000 
Friends First Hove  10,000 
Ore Community 
Association Hastings  10,000 
French African  Lambeth, 
Welfare Association  West Norwood  10,000 
Harold Wood 
Neighbourhood Centre Romford  10,000 
Friends of the X112 Barrow-in-Furness  10,000 
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Hindmarsh Village Hall Alnwick  10,000 * 
Isabella Community
 Association Ltd Blyth  10,000  
Muslim Educational 
Consultative Committee Birmingham  10,000  
Wighton Village Recreation 
Hut Committee Wighton  10,000 * 
Bwlchygroes Community 
Hall Committee Llanfyrnach  10,000  
Jamyang Buddhist Centre Leeds Leeds  
10,000  
The London Irish Centre London  10,000  
The New Life Church Woking  10,000  
Fermanagh Rural 
Community Initiative County Fermanagh  10,000  
Abbey Physic 
Community Garden Faversham  10,000  
Bouth Village Hall Ulverston  10,000  
Just Good Friends 
(North West) Ltd Lytham St Anne's  10,000  
Karis Neighbour Scheme Birmingham  10,000  
Maryvale Community 
Project Birmingham  10,000  
Melin Community Trust West Glamorgan  10,000  
Monty's Community Hub Southampton  10,000  
Northchurch Community 
Centre Berkhamstead  10,000  
The Open Blue Trust Calne  10,000  
The Shrewsbury 
Furniture Scheme Shrewsbury  10,000  
Too Good To Waste 
(Ellesmere Port) Ltd Ellesmere Port  10,000  
Westbank Community 
Health and Care Exeter  10,000  
Hanworth with Gunton 
Memorial Hall Norwich  10,000  
Northumberland Pride Ashington  10,000  
Parkhead Citizens 
Advice Bureau Glasgow  10,000  
Shrublands Youth and 
Adult Centre Charitable 
Trust Great Yarmouth  10,000  
Yesu Sheringham  10,000  
Friends of Firs Farm London  10,000  
Harrow Carers London  10,000  
St Mary's Parish Church Dalton in Furness  10,000  
Darnall Well Being Sheffield  10,000  
Football Unites Racism 
Divides Educational Trust Sheffield  10,000  
Hope Church Luton Trust Luton  10,000  
Hutton Roof Village Hall Carnforth  10,000  
Longhoughton Community 
and Sports Centre Trust Alnwick  10,000  
Skills & Training Network London  10,000  
Aspire Community Enterprise 
(Sheffield) Ltd Sheffield  10,000 * 
Beatroute Arts Glasgow  10,000  
Broadstone Neighbourhood 
Forum CIO Broadstone  10,000  
Community Care Foundation 
Birmingham Ltd Birmingham  10,000  

Holsworthy Rural Community 
Transport Ltd  Holsworthy  10,000  
Menheniot Legion Hall Menheniot  10,000 * 
Remake Scotland Crieff  10,000  
Accrington Stanley Football 
in the Community 
Trust Ltd Accrington  10,000  
Boston Spa Village 
Hall CIO Boston Spa  10,000  
Hour Community Framlingham  10,000  
Lydney Dial-A-Ride and 
Community Transport Lydney  10,000  
St Paul's Family Centre Llanelli  10,000  
Wilderness Trust Powys  10,000  
Trinity Family Centre Westcliff-o-Sea    8,000  
MHS Heritage 
and Culture Maghera    8,000 * 
Shutlanger Village Hall Towcester    8,000  
The Society of 
St Columba Chanctonbury    8,000  
The Canon Pyon Playing 
Fields Association Hereford    8,000  
Remark! Community Ltd London    8,000  
Friends of 
Cotteridge Park Birmingham    8,000  
Garnant Family Centre Ammanford    7,500  
Millburn Community 
Association Coleraine    7,500  
Wellspring Family Centre Dereham    7,500  
Beverley Community Lift Beverley    7,500  
Aghalee Village Hall Craigavon    7,500  
Hands on London London    7,500  
Abergorki Community 
Hall Treorchy    7,500  
Daventry Area 
Community Transport Daventry    7,500  
Walsall Black 
Sisters Collective Walsall    7,500  
The Halliday Foundation Glasgow    7,500  
Knoll Community 
Association  Hove    7,500  
Birmingham City Mission Birmingham    7,500  
Berneray Community 
Association Lochmaddy    7,000  
Linskill and North 
Tyneside Community 
Development Trust North Shields    6,500  
Muslim Women's Council Bradford    6,500  
New Heights – Warren Farm 
Community Project Birmingham    6,500  
Suicide Prevention Bristol    6,000  
Port Glasgow Voluntary 
Trans-Port Group Port Glasgow    6,000  
Cairneyhill Community 
Sports Hub Dunfermline    5,000  
The Dunholme Trust Lincoln    5,000  
Holyport Community 
Trust Holyport    5,000  
Ashill Village Hall Ashill    5,000  
Sandwell African 
Women Association West Bromwich    5,000  

62  Report and accounts of the Trustees · 2023



The Community Hub London    5,000  
Advice Mid Wales  Powys    5,000  
One Stop Advice & 
Training Centre Luton    5,000  
St John's Denby Huddersfield    5,000  
Phab Limited  Croydon    5,000  
Lee Green Lives London    5,000  
Northumberland Community 
Enterprise Ltd Morpeth    5,000  
Corsley Reading Room Warminster    5,000  
Ringmer Village Hall 
Management Committee Ringmer    5,000 * 
South Brent 
Recreation Association South Brent    5,000  
Markbeech Village Hall Edenbridge    5,000  
Buzzer Buses 
(Dial a Ride) Ltd Leighton Buzzard    5,000 * 
Felixstowe Area 
Community Transport Felixstowe    5,000  
Re:Charge R&R Maidenhead    5,000  
SAMEE Bournemouth    5,000  
All Arts & Media Ltd Manchester    5,000  
Dorothy Parkes Centre Smethwick    5,000  
Young Asian Voices  Sunderland    5,000  
Bournemouth Young Men's 
Christian Association Bournemouth    5,000  
Furniture Reclamation and 
Delivery Enterprise Stockton-on-Tees    5,000  
Hounslow Community 
Association Ltd Hounslow    5,000  
Manchester City Mission Salford    5,000  
Oldbury Village Hall 
Charitable Trust Bridgnorth    5,000  
The Phoenix Farm 
Open Door Project Nottingham    5,000  
Yarlington Club and 
Reading Room Wincanton    5,000  
Allerthorpe Village Hall 
Management Committee York    5,000  
Boston Community 
Transport Boston    5,000  
Dorstone Village Hall Hereford    5,000  
Skerton (Lancaster) 
Community Association Lancaster    5,000  
Waste Not Want Not Ltd Chippenham    5,000  
Guarlford Village Hall 
Committee Malvern    5,000 * 
Richmond Furniture 
Scheme Twickenham    5,000 * 
Crieff Community Trust Crieff    5,000  
Wiltshire and Bath 
Independent Living 
Trust Ltd Semington    5,000  
Exeter Food Action Exeter    5,000  
North Area Partnership Rochdale    5,000  
All Saints Community 
Project Trust Chatham    5,000  
The Marden House 
Centre Calne    5,000 * 
Chariotts Wrexham    5,000  
Roydon Village Hall Harlow    3,500 

Westland Countryside 
Stewards Kilkhampton    3,000 
Greens Norton Community 
Centre Association Towcester    3,000 
Caston Village Hall 
Charitable Trust Caston    3,000 
Mossley Old School Trust Congleton    3,000 
Village Hall (Harston) Cambridge    3,000 
The DATIC Trust Sheffield    3,000 
Friends of New Earswick 
Swimming Pool York    3,000 
1st Studley St Johns 
Guides Trowbridge    3,000 *
The Widows Empowerment 
Trust Manchester    3,000 
Karibu African Women's 
Support Group Ipswich    3,000 
Charity IT Association London    3,000 
Uckfield Volunteer Centre Uckfield    3,000 
Mid Ulster Community 
and Arts Trust Ltd Carrickmore    3,000 *
Olive Community Project Stockport    3,000 
Great Hallingbury Village 
Hall Committee Bishop's Stortford    2,500 
Merriott Tithe Barn 
Committee Merriott    2,500 
Bollington Initiative Trust Macclesfield    2,500 
Connect Group  Salford    2,500 
Eglwyswrw Community 
Assocation Crymych    2,500 
Aighton Bailey and Chaigley 
War Memorial Hall Clitheroe    2,500 
Moorlands Voluntary and 
Community Transport Leek    2,500 
The Oaksey Village Hall Malmesbury    2,500 
Fife Cycle Speedway Kinross    2,000 
Richmond Good 
Neighbours Twickenham    2,000 
South Kintyre 
Development Trust Campbeltown    2,000 
The Caladh Trust Isle of Benbecula    2,000 
Stoke-by-Clare Village Hall Sudbury    1,000 
Total for Community 2,619,000
(Total number of grants: 254)

Education  £
Edinburgh Science 
Foundation  Edinburgh  20,000 
The Mayor of London's Fund 
for Young Musicians London  20,000 
Townhill Community 
School Swansea  20,000 
Life Skills 
Education Charity  Mansfield  20,000 
Tutor The Nation London  20,000 
Student Hubs Oxford  20,000 
Camberwell After 
School Project London  15,000 
The Percival Guildhouse Rugby  15,000 
Choppington Primary 
School Choppington  15,000 
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Friends of Oakfield 
Park School Pontefract  15,000 * 
Craigmillar Literacy Trust Edinburgh  15,000  
Tutors United London  15,000  
Pathfield PTFA Barnstaple  15,000  
Community Playlink Southampton  15,000  
Jacari Bristol  15,000  
Centre for ADHD and 
Autism Support Eastcote  15,000  
Ablaze A Business 
Learning Action Zone 
for Education  Bristol  15,000  
Lifeskills Learning 
for Living Bristol  15,000  
The Otakar Kraus 
Music Trust Hampton  10,000  
The Henrietta Barnett 
School London  10,000 * 
Mill Water SEN School East Budleigh  10,000  
The Friends of Manor 
Mead School Shepperton  10,000  
Catcote Futures  Hartlepool  10,000 * 
Kings Rise Academy Birmingham  10,000  
Mendham Primary School 
and Nursery Mendham  10,000 * 
The Daniel Spargo-Mabbs
Foundation South Croydon  10,000  
Lightyear Foundation Ltd York  10,000  
Magic Lantern London  10,000  
Next Step Foundation London  10,000  
Lead Scotland Edinburgh  10,000  
The Royal Academy of 
Culinary Arts Adopt 
a School Trust London  10,000  
The Volunteer Tutors 
Organisation Glasgow  10,000  
Strathspey Works – 
Grantown Remakery Grantown on Spey    7,500  
INCREDIBLE ME Bristol    5,000  
Ravenswood Friends and
Parents Association Nailsea    5,000  
PTFA Tettenhall 
Wood School Wolverhampton    5,000 * 
Branfil Primary School Havering    5,000 * 
Respected Bournemouth    5,000  
Central Schools Trust Coventry    5,000 * 
Clapgate Community
Fund Leeds    5,000  
The Latin Programme – 
Via Facilis London    5,000  
The Rowdown Inspire to 
Aspire Foundation New Addington    5,000  
Gillas Lane 
Primary Academy Tyne and Wear    5,000  
St. Aidan's 
Catholic Academy Sunderland    5,000  
eQuality Time Ltd Luton    5,000  
Future Skills Training London    5,000  

King Athelstan  Kingston 
Primary School upon Thames    5,000  
Ramnoth Junior School Wisbech    5,000 * 
Mereside Primary School Blackpool    5,000 * 
The Duchess's High 
School Trust Alnwick    4,000  
Kitwell Primary School Birmingham    3,000 * 
Clio's Company London    2,500  
Life Education Centres 
Bromley Ltd London    2,500  
Centre for the Advancement 
of Science and 
Technology Education Norwich    2,000  
Friends of Cornwood C of E 
Primary School Ivybridge    2,000  
St Bernadette's Catholic 
Primary School Brinnington    1,500 * 
Total for Education 545,000
(Total number of grants: 56)

Environment  £
The Green Alliance Trust London  20,000  
The 2 Minute Foundation Croyde  20,000  
Ecobirmingham Birmingham  20,000  
Initiative for Nature 
Conservation Cymru Llanarthne  20,000  
The Warwickshire Wildlife 
Trust Ltd Coventry  20,000  
River Waveney Trust Diss  20,000  
The Environment Centre  Swansea  15,000  
Climate Action Strathaven  15,000  
Awel Aman Tawe Swansea  15,000  
Friends of the Trans 
Pennine Trail Barnsley  10,000  
GreenSeas Trust London  10,000  
UK Overseas Territories 
Conservation Forum Wendover  10,000  
Cornwall Community
 Development Ltd Redruth  10,000  
The Lesley Haskins 
Charitable Trust Wimborne  10,000  
Wild Oxfordshire Abingdon  10,000  
Pembrokeshire Coast 
National Park Trust Pembroke Dock    8,000  
Groundwork North Wales Caernarfon    6,500  
Wicked Weather Watch Corsham    5,000 * 
Curlew Action Bristol    5,000  
Total for Environment 249,500
(Total number of grants: 19)

Faith  £
St Mary's Church Bloxham  20,000  
Cheadle Parish PCC Cheadle  20,000  
Foundry Community 
Church Ltd Widnes  20,000  
Christian Books 
Worldwide Swindon  20,000  
HCJB-UK Ltd  Bradford  20,000  
The Tewkesbury Abbey 
Foundation Tewkesbury  20,000  
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The House on the Corner 
Community Project Walsall  20,000  
St John's with 
Emmanuel  Werrington  20,000 * 
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Andrew 
by the Wardrobe London  20,000  
St Francis of Assisi 
Church Doncaster  20,000 * 
St Peter's Church Chertsey  20,000 * 
St Bartholomew's Church Brisley  20,000 * 
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Stephen 
on the Cliffs Blackpool  20,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Mary 
and St Michael  Great Malvern  20,000  
St Mary the Virgin,
Buckland Faringdon  20,000  
St John Blackpool  20,000  
Bebington: St Andrew Wirral  20,000  
Northgate United 
Reformed Church Darlington  20,000  
St John the Baptist 
Tideswell: The Cathedral 
of the Peak Tideswell  20,000  
All Saints Church Hessle  20,000 * 
St Ives' Church Leadgate  20,000 * 
Holy Rood Church,
Shillingstone Blandford Forum  20,000  
Oughtibridge PCC Sheffield  15,000  
Earls Barton 
Methodist Church Northampton  15,000  
Horbury Churches 
Together Wakefield  15,000  
Life Church  Bedworth  15,000  
St Martin's Church Cambridge  15,000  
Grove Street 
Methodist Church Retford  15,000 * 
St Giles Church 
Codicote PCC Hitchin  15,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Andrew  Kettering   15,000 * 
Westgate Chapel 
Unitarian   Wakefield   15,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Marys Balcombe  15,000  
Emmanuel Group 
of Churches Northampton  15,000  
Church Hall Roxwell  15,000  
St Mary the Virgin Church, 
Whissonsett Dereham  15,000 * 
Sandyhills Parish Church Glasgow  15,000  
Liverton PCC Saltburn  15,000  
Moira St John Moira  15,000  
Peasemore St Barnabas Newbury  15,000 * 
St Andrew's Church 
Hingham Charity Hingham  15,000  
St Mary's Church, 
Arkengarthdale Langthwaite  15,000  
St Nicolas Church, 
Hail Weston St Neots  15,000  

Methodist Circuit Southend 
and Leigh Circuit Leigh-on-Sea  15,000 
Wilby: All Saints Wilby  15,000 
St Peter & St Paul Church, 
Great Casterton Stamford  15,000 *
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Milton New Milton  15,000 *
Banbury Community 
Church Banbury  15,000 
St Peters Copdock 
and Washbrook Ipswich  15,000 
Ovington: St Mary Sudbury  15,000 
St Andrew's Psalter 
Lane Church Sheffield  15,000 *
St Philip's Parish Church Liverpool  15,000 
The Church of St Mary 
South Ruislip London  15,000 
Sutton St Michael Norwich  10,000 
Frontier Youth Trust London  10,000 
St Bartholomew's Church, 
Maresfield Uckfield  10,000 
The Viney Hill Christian 
Adventure Centre  Lydney  10,000 
Friends of St Laurence Church, 
Warborough Wallingford  10,000 
PCC of Muchelney Langport  10,000 
All Saints Church, 
Grendon Atherstone  10,000 
Isle of Wight 
Street Pastors Newport  10,000 
Stratford-upon-Avon 
Baptist Church Stratford-upon-Avon  10,000 
St John's Church  Portland  10,000 *
Crawshawbooth 
Meeting House Rossendale  10,000 
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of All Saints 
Woodham Woking  10,000 
Owlerton PCC Sheffield  10,000 
Biddulph Methodist 
Church Biddulph  10,000 
St Peter's Church, 
Westleigh Leigh  10,000 
PCC of St Mary's Church Tadley  10,000 
St Barnabas' Church, 
Heigham Norwich  10,000 
Westbourne Grove 
Church London  10,000 
St Edward's Church Plymouth  10,000 *
St Peters Church PCC Budleigh Salterton  10,000 *
Light & Life Free 
Methodist Church St Austell  10,000 
Buxton Methodist Church Buxton  10,000 
St Elwyn's Church Hayle  10,000 
St James St Helens  10,000 
St Michael's Church, 
Chiswick London  10,000 
Association of 
Christian Counsellors Coventry  10,000 
Bethel Baptist 
Church Pontyclun Pontypridd  10,000 
Leeds Diocesan Trust Leeds  10,000 
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St John the Baptist Church, 
Eton with Eton Wick 
and Boveney Windsor  10,000  
St Michael & All Angels Northampton  10,000  
All Saints Church, 
Wilbarston Market Harborough  10,000  
Linthwaite Methodist 
Church Huddersfield  10,000  
The Leicester Diocesan 
Board of Finance Leicester  10,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Peter & St Paul 
North Curry Taunton  10,000  
Hinckley: Holy Trinity Hinckley  10,000  
Leckhampstead
 St James Leckhampstead  10,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Stephen, 
Acomb York  10,000  
Celebration Church 
United Kingdom Ltd Maidstone  10,000  
St Albans Masorti 
Synagogue St Albans  10,000  
St Nicholas Church Baldock  10,000  
The King's Cross Church, 
Hexthorpe Doncaster  10,000  
Fetteresso Stonehaven 
Church of Scotland Stonehaven  10,000 * 
Grace Church Nottingham  10,000  
Farnworth Baptist Church Bolton  10,000  
St Catherine's Church, 
Stoke Aldermoor Coventry  10,000  
Kings Church Bolton  10,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Preston St John 
and St George the Martyr Preston  10,000  
Christian Community 
Action Ministries Reading  10,000  
Frampton Park 
Baptist Church London  10,000  
Grain: St James Rochester  10,000  
Seagate Evangelical 
Church Troon  10,000  
St Mary the Virgin, 
Painswick Gloucester  10,000  
The Church of St David Kington  10,000 * 
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Aldhelm, 
Edmonton London  10,000  
The Abbey Church of 
St Mary & St Melor Amesbury  10,000  
Granborough PCC – 
St John the Baptist Granborough    8,000  
Hemsby PCC Hemsby    8,000  
Weston Longville 
All Saints: A Parson 
Woodforde Church Norwich    8,000  
Orton-on-the-Hill: St Edith 
of Polesworth Church Atherstone    8,000  
All Saints and St Andrew 
Church Kingston Cambridge    8,000  
St John the Baptist Church, 
Cockayne Hatley Sandy    8,000  

St Mary The Virgin, 
Woodditton  Newmarket    8,000  
St Peter's Church Ruthin    8,000  
All Saints' Church 
Longhope  Huntley    7,500  
Kidderminster St George Kidderminster    7,500  
St Andrew & St Mary the 
Virgin Church, Fletching Uckfield    7,500  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Nicholas Warwick    7,500  
St Edmunds Church, 
South Burlingham Norwich    7,500  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Mary 
Magdalene Yarm    7,500 * 
St Thomas the 
Apostle PCC  Leicester    7,500  
All Saints' Church, 
East Pennard Shepton Mallet    7,500 * 
St Ethelburga's Church St Leonards-on-Sea    7,500  
St Michael & All Angels 
Church, Poulton Cirencester    7,500  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Calne 
and Blackland Calne    7,500  
St Mary Magdalene Warrington    7,500  
Reepham Methodist 
Church Reepham    7,500  
St Mary, Chidham Chichester    7,500  
St Margaret of Antioch 
Church Thrandeston Diss    7,500  
St Mark's Episcopal 
Church: Portobello Edinburgh    7,500  
St Mary Walmer    7,500  
St Marks Church Weston-super-Mare    7,000  
All Saints Church 
Houghton Regis Dunstable    6,000 * 
Millom Baptist Church Millom Cumbria    6,000  
St Giles, 
Great Hallingbury Bishop's Stortford    6,000  
St Margaret's Church, 
Somerton Bury St Edmunds    6,000  
Zetland Park 
Methodist Church Redcar    6,000  
St Paul's, Irton Holmrook    6,000  
Narford: St Mary 
the Virgin Kings Lynn    6,000  
Parkwood Methodist 
Church Huddersfield    6,000  
St John the Divine, 
Rastrick Brighouse    6,000  
Hutton Magna PCC Richmond    5,000  
South West Youth 
Ministries Exeter    5,000  
St Marks Church Dukinfield    5,000  
St Bartholomew's Church, 
Ewood Blackburn    5,000  
St Luke's Church Bromley    5,000  
Blickling PCC Norwich    5,000  
St John's Church 
Whorlton Newcastle upon Tyne    5,000  
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St Michael & All Angels 
Church Salisbury    5,000  
St Peter & St Paul Church 
Swalcliffe PCC Banbury    5,000  
St Anne's Episcopal 
Church Dunbar    5,000  
St James the Greater 
Church (PCC of Eastbury) Hungerford    5,000  
St Michael's Church, 
Awliscombe PCC Honiton    5,000  
Christ Church 
Biddulph Moor  Stoke-on-Trent    5,000 * 
Farley All Saints Church Nr Salisbury    5,000  
St Austell Local Meeting 
(Quakers) St Austell    5,000  
St James' Church, Lode Cambridge    5,000  
St Mary's and St David's 
Church, Kilpeck Hereford    5,000  
Raglan Baptist Church Raglan    5,000  
Church of the Cross London    5,000 * 
All Saints Church Rayne  Braintree    5,000  
Kettlestone PCC Fakenham    5,000 * 
St Christopher's Church Winfrith Newburgh    5,000  
St Mary Magdalene 
Church Medomsley    5,000 * 
St Michael the Archangel  Polegate    5,000  
The Bristol City Mission – 
Great George St Church  Bristol    5,000  
Long Lane Church Liverpool    5,000  
St Teilo's Church, 
Llantilio Pertholey Abergavenny    5,000  
St Nicolas' Church Grimsby    5,000  
Stoke St Gregory 
Baptist Church Taunton    5,000 * 
St Andrew's Church Guist Dereham    5,000  
St Andrew's Church, 
Great Easton Market Harborough    5,000  
St Helen's Church, 
Skipwith Selby    5,000  
Woven St Martin's Church, 
Bilborough Nottingham    5,000  
All Saints Church, Orton Penrith    5,000  
Leominster Priory Leominster    5,000  
St Helen's Church, 
Stickford Boston    5,000  
Whiteparish: All Saints' 
Church Salisbury    5,000  
Mursley: St Mary 
the Virgin Milton Keynes    5,000  
Rugby Baptist Church Rugby    5,000  
St Mary, Shirehampton Bristol    5,000  
St Peter's, Dyrham Chippenham    5,000  
Dundee: Menzieshill Parish 
Church of Scotland Dundee    5,000  
Great Oakley: All Saints Harwich    5,000  
Oxford Churches 
Debt Centre Oxford    5,000  
St Mary & St Lambert, Stonham 
Aspal and Mickfield Stowmarket    5,000  
St Mary Magdalene, 
Shabbington Aylesbury    5,000  

All Saints Church 
Highams Park London    5,000 
St Mary the Virgin, 
Castle Eaton Swindon    5,000 
St Mary's Church Little Driffield    5,000 
St Peter and St Paul Chiselborough    5,000 
PCC Holy Trinity with 
St Laurence Church Morecambe    5,000 
St Mary the Virgin Church Didcot    5,000 
All Saints Church Wigan    5,000 *
St Helen Cornhill-on-Tweed    5,000 
St Peter and St Paul Church, 
Saltwood Hythe    5,000 
All Saints Landbeach Cambridge    5,000 
St Helens Church Amotherby     5,000 
St Mary's Bartlow Cambridge    5,000 
Tealby PCC  Market Rasen    4,500 
Friends of St James Church, 
Hartlebury Kidderminster    4,000 *
City Life Church Truro    4,000 
Skeffington: St Thomas 
a Becket Leicester    4,000 
St Mary, Belstone Okehampton    4,000 
New Life Church 
Cardigan Trust Cardigan    4,000 
St Mary the Virgin, 
Great Ouseburn York    4,000 *
Cross-Links Dover Dover    4,000 
St Peter's Church  Copt Oak    3,500 
St James the Great Idridgehay    3,000 
Lamplugh and 
Ennerdale PCC  Cleator    3,000 
Wick Baptist Church Wick    3,000 
Believers Fellowship and 
Prayer Ministry London    3,000 
St Bartholomew's Church, 
Egdean Pulborough    3,000 
St Dunawd's Church  Wrexham    3,000 
Edinburgh Street Pastors Edinburgh    3,000 
Newburgh United 
Reformed Church Newburgh     3,000 
St Andrew's Church, 
Claxton Norwich    3,000 
St John the Divine Church 
Chevington Morpeth    3,000 
St Mary's, Dallinghoo Woodbridge    3,000 
St Botolph's Church, 
Heene Worthing    3,000 
St Brendan's Church, 
Sydenham Belfast    3,000 
Holy Trinity 
Bolton le Sands Carnforth    3,000 
St Peter's Church 
Halliwell Bolton    3,000 
Rumney Gospel Chapel Cardiff    3,000 
St Mary's Church, 
West Stockwith Doncaster    3,000 
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of St Stephen's, 
South Dulwich London    3,000 
Wickhampton: St Andrew Norwich    3,000 
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Prudhoe Methodist 
Church Prudhoe    3,000  
St Peter & St John 
Church Rugby    3,000  
57 West Baptist Church Southend    3,000  
St John's Church Saxmundham    3,000  
Trinity Methodist Church  Barton-upon-Humber    3,000  
St Oudoceus Church, 
Parish of Llandogo 
with Whitebrook Monmouth    2,500  
St John the Baptist, 
Finchingfield  Braintree    2,500  
St David's Church, 
Ashprington Totnes    2,500 * 
The Association of the 
Friends of St Giles' Church 
Cripplegate London    2,500  
Sharon Full Gospel 
Church Pontypool    2,500  
Saint Augustine's Church Scaynes Hill    2,500 * 
Holy Trinity Church, 
Waterhead Oldham    2,500 * 
St James Burton in Kendal    2,500  
St Lawrence York    2,500  
St Mary the Virgin  Clopton 
Church near Woodbridge    2,500  
The Beacon Elim 
Churches Blackburn    2,500  
St Nicholas Church Newbald    2,000  
St Peters Church, 
Dalwood  Axminster    2,000  
Carrick Parish Church Limavady    2,000  
Burton Coggles PCC Grantham    2,000  
Church of St John the  Newcastle
Evangelist, Kingston Park upon Tyne    2,000  
St Dona Church, 
Llanddona Beaumaris    2,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of Holy Trinity, 
Upper Tooting London    2,000  
Mount Charles 
Methodist Church St Austell    2,000  
St James, Slaithwaite Huddersfield    2,000  
St Paul's Church, Healey Ripon    2,000  
All Saints' Church, 
Hooten Pagnell Doncaster    2,000  
Tickhill Methodist Church Doncaster    2,000  
Oxton St Saviours 
Church  Birkenhead    1,500  
Golcar Providence 
Methodist Church Huddersfield    1,500  
Shelley, All Saints Ipswich    1,500  
The DCC of St James  Louth    1,500  
St Margaret Tiverton    1,000  
St Michael & All Angels 
Church Middleton Tyas    1,000  
Total for Faith 2,150,000
(Total number of grants: 262)

Health  £
Eczema Outreach 
Support Linlithgow  20,000  
Hypo Hounds Ashford  20,000  
The Ambulance 
Staff Charity Coventry  20,000  
Sahir House Liverpool  20,000  
Self-harm Awareness for 
All Cumbria  Barrow-in-Furness  20,000  
Hope House Children's 
Hospices Oswestry  20,000 * 
Windsor and Maidenhead 
Youth and Community 
Counselling Service Maidenhead  20,000  
Orchid Cancer Appeal London  20,000  
Creative Living Centre  Greater Manchester  20,000  
The Katie Piper 
Foundation London  20,000  
Bracken Trust Ltd Powys  20,000  
Margaret Clitherow Trust Henley-on-Thames  20,000  
Blue Sky Trust Newcastle upon Tyne  20,000  
The Mary Stevens 
Hospice Stourbridge  20,000 * 
Bristol After Stroke Bristol  20,000  
Home from Hospital 
Care After Treatment Birmingham  20,000  
North Devon Hospice Barnstaple  20,000  
Phoenix Enterprises 
(Swindon) Ltd Swindon  20,000  
Tourettes Action  Farnborough  20,000  
Chilli Studios (Newcastle 
and Gateshead Arts  Newcastle
Studio) Ltd upon Tyne  20,000  
Stuart Low Trust London  15,000  
Cambridge Acorn Project Cambridge  15,000  
St John Cymru Wales Cardiff  15,000  
Chichester Information 
Shop For Young People Chichester  15,000  
Brecon and District Mind Brecon  15,000  
Riverside Counselling 
Service Henley-on-Thames  15,000  
Cavernoma Alliance UK Dorchester  15,000  
Ashgate Hospicecare Chesterfield  15,000 * 
Glasgow Children's 
Hospital Charity Paisley  15,000  
Soundwell Music 
Therapy Trust Bristol  15,000  
Mymy – Mind Your 
Mate And Yourself Newcastle  15,000  
Paul for Brain Recovery  Hull  15,000  
The Ehlers-Danlos 
Support UK Borehamwood  15,000  
Headway East London London  15,000  
The Ryan MS Therapy 
Centre Coulsdon  15,000  
Key Changes: Positive 
Mental Health Through 
Music Ltd  London  15,000  
Inspire Suffolk Ltd Ipswich  10,000 
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National Axial Spondyloarthritis 
Society Hammersmith  10,000  
The Hydration 
Foundation Bristol  10,000  
Rekindle Home Newtown  10,000  
Hospice Hope Ravenstone  10,000  
Birmingham Centre for 
Arts Therapies  Birmingham  10,000  
North Yorkshire Music 
Therapy Centre  York  10,000  
Suffolk Oxygen 
Therapy Centre  Ipswich  10,000  
The Wren Project Devizes  10,000  
Hi Kent Maidstone  10,000  
James Hopkins Trust Gloucester  10,000  
Poetsin – The Creative 
Mental Health Charity Peterborough  10,000  
Cornwall at Truro 
Samaritans Truro  10,000  
The Grow Project Brighton and Hove  10,000  
The PeerTalk 
Charitable Foundation Keighley  10,000  
Life 2009 Leamington Spa  10,000  
The Five Towns Plus 
Hospice Fund Ltd Pontefract  10,000  
The Polycystic Kidney 
Disease Charity London  10,000  
Cambridge and Peterborough 
Foundation for the Arts 
and Mental Health Cambridge  10,000  
The Burrough 
Harmony Centre Bridport  10,000  
The Centre for Brain 
Injury Rehabilitation 
& Development Chester  10,000  
British Thyroid 
Foundation Harrogate  10,000  
Argyll Wellbeing Hub Oban  10,000  
Change Mental Health Edinburgh  10,000  
Association for Rehabilitation 
of Communication and 
Oral Skills  Malvern  10,000  
Support Arts Gardening 
Education Sheffield  10,000  
Sarah Agnes Foundation London    7,500  
Hope After Suicide Loss Diss    7,500  
Triumph Over Phobia 
(TOP UK) Bath    7,500  
Yeovil Freewheelers EVS Yeovil    7,500  
Cianna's Smile Reading    5,000  
Waves Music Therapy East Preston    5,000  
In Charleys Memory Highbridge    5,000  
Knowle West 
Health Association Bristol    5,000  
Peeps Manchester    5,000  
Pelvic Radiation  Kingston 
Disease Association upon Thames    5,000  
Maddie's Miracle Wareham    5,000  
The Human Milk 
Foundation Harpenden    5,000  
We Get It Together CIO Bath    5,000  

MenTalkHealth Norwich    5,000 
The WayfinderWoman 
Trust Eastbourne    5,000 
Race Against 
Multiple Sclerosis Belfast    5,000 
Leeds Mind Leeds    5,000 
St Luke's Hospice Sheffield    5,000 
Headroom – Young 
People's Charity Hampshire    2,000 
Total for Health 1,002,000
(Total number of grants: 81)

Museums & Heritage  £
Friends of Tower Hamlets 
Cemetery Park London  20,000 
Kenelm Youth Trust Stoke-on-Trent  20,000 *
The West House and Heath 
Robinson Museum Trust Pinner  20,000 
Ferryhill Railway Heritage 
Trust inc. Ferryhill 
Men's Shed Aberdeen  20,000 *
Kirkcaldy Old Kirk Trust Kirkcaldy  15,000 
Knockando Woolmill 
Trust Aberlour  15,000 
The Rachel Kay-Shuttleworth 
Textile Collections Padiham  15,000 
Falkland Hall Charity Burford  10,000 
Nene Valley Railway Ltd Peterborough  10,000 
The Soldiers of Gloucestershire 
Museum Gloucester  10,000 
Arundel Museum Society Arundel  10,000 
Birmingham Conservation 
Trust Birmingham  10,000 
Donaghadee Heritage 
Preservation Company Donaghadee  10,000 
The E17 Walthamstow 
Pumphouse Museum Walthamstow  10,000 *
Derbyshire Historic 
Buildings Trust Matlock  10,000 
College of Arms Trust London    5,000 
The Glenesk Trust Brechin    5,000 
Tarka Valley Railway Torington    5,000 
The Sheffield General 
Cemetery Trust Sheffield    5,000 
Foxcote Manor Society Clwyd    3,500 
Friends of Bath Jewish 
Burial Ground CIO Bath    3,000 
Total for Museums & Heritage 231,500
(Total number of grants: 21)

Welfare  £
Deafness Resource 
Centre Ltd St Helens   20,000 
The Family Haven Gloucester   20,000 
The People Hive Twickenham   20,000 
Road To Recovery Trust Newcastle upon Tyne   20,000 
The Greenwich 
Carers Centre London   20,000 
Azalea  Luton   20,000 
Carers Centre SA Ltd Greater London   20,000 
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Elfrida Rathbone 
Camden  London   20,000  
Home-Start CHAMS Crawley   20,000  
Devon Link Up Exeter   20,000  
Asperger East Anglia Norwich   20,000  
Checkin Works Perth   20,000 * 
Home-Start 
North Somerset Weston-super-Mare   20,000  
Luminary Ltd  Hackney   20,000  
Steps2Recovery  London   20,000  
International Care 
Network Bournemouth   20,000  
Redbridge Respite 
Carers Association Essex   20,000  
The Care Collective Pontypool   20,000  
Equality Together Bradford   20,000  
KIDCARE4U Newport   20,000  
Refugee Women Connect Liverpool   20,000  
Age UK Leicester 
Shire & Rutland Leicester   20,000 * 
Jewish Deaf Association London   20,000  
Basingstoke Mencap 
Services Ltd Basingstoke   20,000  
The Uphill Ski Club 
of Great Britain Aviemore   20,000  
Body & Soul London   20,000  
CARIS Camden Families London   20,000  
Family Based Solutions Enfield   20,000  
Omega, The National 
Association for End 
of Life Care Shrewsbury   20,000  
Age Concern 
East Cheshire Macclesfield   20,000  
Age Connects 
Cardiff and Vale Cardiff   20,000  
Hillside Clubhouse London   20,000  
Oasis Project Brighton   20,000  
Down Syndrome Training 
& Support Service Ltd Bingley   20,000  
StandOut Programmes London   20,000  
Teardrops Supporting 
Your Community St Helens   20,000  
Waltham Forest Churches 
Night Shelter London   20,000  
Community Drug and Alcohol 
Recovery Services London   20,000  
Education and Skills 
Development Group Southall   20,000  
Northern Shape Newcastle   20,000  
SAMs SCIO Glasgow   20,000  
West Norfolk Carers Kings Lynn   20,000  
Home-Start Southwark London   20,000  
Vauxhall Community Law 
and Information Centre Liverpool   20,000  
Wirral Society of the Blind 
and Partially Sighted Wirral   20,000  
Carers First Strood   20,000  
Escape Intervention 
Services Ltd South Shields   20,000  
Goalball UK Sutton   20,000  

Home-Start Guildford Guildford   20,000  
Embracing Age Twickenham   20,000  
Haringey Migrant 
Support Centre London   20,000  
Alive Activities Ltd Bristol   20,000  
Home-Start 
Runnymede and Woking Ottershaw   20,000  
Kindred Advocacy Edinburgh   20,000  
Wirral Mencap Birkenhead   20,000  
Carers in Bedfordshire Bedford   20,000  
The Nancy Oldfield 
Trust Ltd Norwich   20,000  
Walthew House 2017 Stockport   20,000  
Dyscover Ltd Leatherhead   20,000  
Tender Education 
And Arts London   20,000  
Home-Start 
Wokingham District Reading   20,000  
Spark (Burntwood) CIO Burntwood   20,000  
Controlling Chemsex London   20,000  
Kazzum Arts Project London   20,000  
Home-Start HOST Tameside   20,000  
Keighley Healthy 
Living Network  Keighley   20,000  
The Papworth Trust Huntingdon   20,000  
Untold Creative 
Training Ltd London   20,000  
Fife Alcohol 
Support Service Kirkcaldy   15,000  
get2gether Edinburgh   15,000  
Home-Start 
Richmondshire Catterick Garrison   15,000  
Special Stars Foundation Hull   15,000  
Change For Good  London   15,000  
The Moses Project Stockton-on-Tees   15,000  
The Muirhead 
Outreach Project Glenrothes   15,000  
Baillieston Community 
Care Glasgow   15,000  
Family Journeys Edinburgh   15,000  
Hollies Day Centre SCIO Musselburgh   15,000  
Newent Association 
for the Disabled Newent   15,000  
Gatwick Detainees 
Welfare Group Crawley   15,000  
Give a Dog a Bone... 
and an Animal a Home Glasgow   15,000  
Refugee Roots Nottingham   15,000  
Teesdale Day Clubs Barnard Castle   15,000  
Students and Refugees 
Together  Plymouth   15,000  
Disability Advice Service 
(East Suffolk) Martlesham Heath   15,000  
Home-Start 
Newry & Mourne Newry   15,000  
More than Grandparents Sunderland   15,000  
Warwickshire Vision 
Support  Warwick   15,000  
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Hestia Housing and 
Support London   15,000  
Sunderland Bangladeshi 
Community Centre Sunderland   15,000  
DIAL South Essex Grays   15,000  
Mylor Sailability Falmouth   15,000  
St Vincent's 
Family Project London   15,000  
Churches Action 
For The Homeless Perth   15,000  
Hope at Home Bromsgrove   15,000  
Stepping Stones DS Fleet   15,000  
Healthy Generations London   15,000  
Home-Start 
Down District Downpatrick   15,000  
Home-Start 
Wellingborough & District Wellingborough   15,000  
HostNation London   15,000  
Christians Together 
Calderdale Halifax   15,000  
Community One 
Stop Shop Edinburgh   15,000  
DangerPoint Ltd Talacre   15,000  
South Glasgow Childcare 
Partnership Forum SCIO Glasgow   15,000  
Care Network 
Cambridgeshire Hardwick   15,000  
DorPIP Poole   15,000  
Home-Start 
Ashford & District Ashford   15,000  
Kingsbridge Area 
FoodBank Kingsbridge   15,000  
BUILD Charity Ltd Norwich   15,000  
Excel Women's 
Association Barking   15,000  
Home-Start Slough Slough   15,000  
North East Young Dads 
and Lads Project CIO Gateshead   15,000  
Home-Start 
Chichester & District Chichester   15,000  
Devon and Cornwall 
Refugee Support Plymouth   15,000  
LEAP Project Glasgow   15,000  
People First Merseyside 
Company Ltd Bootle   15,000  
Age UK Thanet Ltd Margate   15,000  
Home-Start Arun
Worthing & Adur Arundel   15,000  
Home-Start Wyre Forest Kidderminster   15,000  
The Springfield Project Birmingham   15,000  
Tectona Trust Ltd Plymouth   15,000  
Ben's Centre for 
Vulnerable People Sheffield   15,000  
Home-Start Dover District Dover   
15,000  
Keighley Association Women 
and Children's Centre Keighley   15,000  
Street Soccer NI Belfast   15,000  
Alive & Kicking SCIO  Glasgow   12,500  

Activity Club for Children 
with Special Needs – 
Thumbs Up Club Reading   10,000 
Anxious Minds Wallsend   10,000 
Herts Disability 
Sports Foundation Baldock   10,000 
Lampeter Family Centre Lampeter   10,000 
Live! Chester   10,000 
Southampton and Winchester 
Visitors Group Southampton   10,000 
Incredible Kids Bristol   10,000 
Sleepsafe Selby Selby   10,000 
Children's Bereavement 
Centre Newark   10,000 
Beloved Bristol   10,000 
Cheltenham Housing 
Aid Centre Cheltenham   10,000 
Kennedy Street 
Foundation CIO Brighton and Hove   10,000 
OmniMusic Stockport   10,000 
Refugee Workers 
Cultural Association  London   10,000 
Sal's Shoes Oxted   10,000 
Survivors of Human T
rafficking in Scotland Bo'ness   10,000 
EnviroAbility Ross-on-Wye   10,000 
Quetzal Leicester   10,000 
21 Together  Maidstone   10,000 
Impact Family Services Sunderland   10,000 
Time Out Group 
(North West) Handforth   10,000 
Disability North Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000 
Doorway Wiltshire Ltd Chippenham   10,000 
Hull Lighthouse Project Hull   10,000 
Pedal People  Brighton   10,000 
The Hope Hub Camberley   10,000 
Chelwood Foodbank 
Plus  Stockport   10,000 
Sanctuary in Chichester Chichester   10,000 
The Downright 
Special Network Hull   10,000 
Friends of Zichron Dovid London   10,000 
Home-Start Walsall Willenhall   10,000 
Kinship Carers UK Worcester   10,000 
Scottish Cot Death Trust Glasgow   10,000 
True Butterflies 
Foundation Truro   10,000 
Waveney Domestic Violence 
and Abuse Forum Lowestoft   10,000 
Jobsearch – Employment 
– Mentoring Derby   10,000 
Asylum and Refugee 
Community, Blackburn   10,000 
Fellowship Afloat 
Charitable Trust Maldon   10,000 
Ikkaido Ltd Oxford   10,000 
My Life My Choice Oxford   10,000 
The Welcome Directory London   10,000 
YouTurn Futures Bedford   10,000
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Home-Start 
North-West Hampshire Basingstoke   10,000  
Southend-on-Sea Blind 
Welfare Organisation Westcliff-on-Sea   10,000  
Watermill Foundation Ltd Cawdor   10,000  
Empowering Futures Bristol   10,000  
Escapeline Taunton   10,000  
Manchester Alliance for 
Community Care Manchester   10,000  
Sutton Vision Sutton   10,000  
Gilgal Birmingham Birmingham   10,000  
Age Concern Norfolk Norwich   10,000  
Bloomin' Arts Ltd Lingfield   10,000  
Caerphilly People First Bargoed   10,000  
Chailey Heritage 
Enterprise Centre Lewes   10,000  
Families Need Fathers Both 
Parents Matter Cymru Cardiff   10,000  
Lincoln & Lindsey 
Blind Society Louth   10,000  
Sexual And Domestic 
Abuse & Rape Advice 
Centre (Burton & District) Burton-on-Trent   10,000  
SHAPE Birmingham   10,000  
The Cyril Flint 
Volunteering Charity Sale   10,000  
Home-Start 
Blackmore Vale Sturminster Newton   10,000  
Lancaster & District Homeless 
Action Service Ltd Lancaster   10,000 * 
Luminate Edinburgh   10,000  
Shine (East Norfolk) Great Yarmouth   10,000  
Assist Trust Norwich   10,000  
BCA Independent 
Advocacy Services Brecon   10,000  
Knight Support  Brighton   10,000  
Search: Services for Older 
People CIO Newcastle upon Tyne   10,000  
Home-Start Lorn Oban   10,000  
Poole Waste Not 
Want Not Poole   10,000  
Home-Start High Peak Whaley Bridge   10,000  
Accuro (Care Services) Bishops Stortford   10,000  
Hackney Migrant Centre London   10,000  
South West Action for Learning 
and Living Our Way Ltd Westfield   10,000  
Tower Hamlets 
Parents Centre London   10,000  
Samphire Dover   10,000  
Standing Tall CIO Birmingham   10,000  
YMCA Edinburgh Edinburgh   10,000  
Home-Start Edinburgh Edinburgh     8,000  
Pelican Parcels Hove     8,000  
Friends For Families Sevenoaks     8,000  
Bromley Brighter 
Beginnings London     8,000  
Mammakind London     7,500  
Tumble Family Centre Llanelli     7,500  
Belong – Making 
Justice Happen London     7,500  

Unite Carers In 
Mid Devon Tiverton     7,500  
Peninim  London     7,500  
Carmarthen Family 
Centres Carmarthen     7,500  
Kincardine and Deeside 
Befriending Stonehaven     7,500  
Age Concern Mole Valley Dorking     7,500  
Adoption Matters Chester     6,500  
Crossroads Derbyshire Glossop     6,500  
Cumbria Alcohol and Drug 
Advisory Service Barrow-in-Furness     6,500  
Deaf-initely Women Belper     6,500  
Disability Stockport CIO Stockport     6,500  
First Stop Darlington Darlington     6,500  
Nepacs Durham     6,500  
Signpost Stockport 
for Carers Stockport     6,500  
Staying Put Leeds     6,500  
The Boaz Trust Manchester     6,500  
Your Voice Counts Gateshead     6,500  
The Northam Care Trust Bideford     6,000  
Coventry Rugby Community 
Foundation Ltd Coventry     5,000  
Us in a Bus Redhill     5,000  
ILM (Highland) Alness     5,000  
Morfa Family Centre Llanelli     5,000  
The PCC of the Ecclesiastical 
Parish of the Church 
of the Martyrs Leicester     5,000  
Home-Start Torridge & 
North Devon Bideford     5,000  
Crossroads Care Kent Wateringbury     5,000  
East African Association  London     5,000  
North Staffs Asperger's/Autism 
Association Stoke-on-Trent     5,000  
Llandysul Family Centre Llandysul     5,000  
Eastside Young Leaders' Academy London     
5,000  
The Autism Group Maidenhead     5,000  
SPLASH Gateshead     5,000  
One Life Autism 
Support Group Ebbw Vale     5,000  
Club Tikva Greater Manchester     5,000  
Wheels for Freedom Poole     5,000 * 
Disability North Newcastle 
 upon Tyne     5,000  
Hijinx Cardiff     5,000  
Legacy WM Birmingham     5,000  
Neuro Therapy Centre Saltney     5,000  
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
Refugee Forum Nottingham     5,000  
N-Vision. Blackpool, Fylde 
and Wyre Society 
for the Blind Blackpool     5,000  
One Roof Leicester Leicester     5,000  
Sefton Women's and 
Children's Aid Bootle     5,000  
Stockport Without Abuse Stockport     5,000  
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Stockport Women's 
Centre Stockport      5,000  
Happy Hill Essex CIO Braintree     5,000  
International Community 
Organisation of 
Sunderland Sunderland     5,000  
Active Independence Doncaster     5,000  
HomeStart Teignbridge Newton Abbot     5,000  
Daniels Den Sudbury     5,000  
Home-Start Orkney Orkney     5,000  
Sing Inside London     5,000  
Hanseatic Union King's Lynn     5,000  
African Women Impact 
UK CIO Walsall     3,500  
Age Concern Cheshire Northwich     3,500  
Citadel Arts Group Edinburgh     3,500  
High Peak Homeless 
Help CIO Buxton     3,000  
Sign and Share Club Tenby     3,000  
Embrace Warwickshire 
Ltd Coventry     3,000  
Age Concern 
North Dorset Sturminster Newton     2,500  
Age Concern 
Hampshire Southampton     2,500  
Hand of Solace Aberdeen     2,000  
Southbourne and District 
Age Concern Nr Emsworth     2,000  
Total for Welfare 3,365,500
(Total number of grants: 271)

Youth  £
The Boleh Trust London   20,000  
Getaway Girls Leeds   20,000  
3rd Weston-super-mare 
Scout Group Weston-super-Mare   20,000 * 
YMCA South Devon Paignton   20,000  
Glasgow Watersports Ltd Glasgow   20,000  
Passion For Learning Ellesmere Port   20,000  
Girlguiding Blairgowrie 
and Rattray District Perth & Kinross   20,000 * 
Positive Youth 
Foundation Coventry   20,000  
The East to West Trust Egham   20,000  
Smile for Life  Newcastle 
Children's Charity upon Tyne   20,000  
Patrician Youth Centre Downpatrick   20,000  
Opportunity Sports 
Foundation Chorley   20,000  
Project Turn-Over Feltham   20,000  
SiblingsTogether London   20,000  
St Peter's Immaculata 
Youth Centre Belfast   20,000  
The Feast Youth Project Birmingham   20,000  
Shropshire Youth 
Support Trust Telford   20,000  
The Rock-Currock 
Youth Project Carlisle   20,000  
The Ben Kinsella Trust London   20,000  

Bangladesh Youth 
League Luton   20,000 
Inner Flame Swindon   20,000 
Lancashire Youth 
Challenge Lancaster   20,000 
London Play London   20,000 
Scottish Sports Futures Glasgow   20,000 
Allsorts Youth Project Brighton   20,000 
Epic Partners Nottingham   20,000 
The Children's  Newcastle 
Foundation Ltd upon Tyne   20,000 
Warwickshire 
Young Carers Balsall Common   20,000 
Mentoring Plus 
Bath and North 
East Somerset Bath   20,000 
The Hwb Torfaen Blaenavon   20,000 
Venture Scotland Edinburgh   20,000 
YPAC Manchester Ltd Manchester   20,000 
Devas Club London   20,000 
Duffryn Community Link Newport   20,000 
Drama Expressions 
For Children London   15,000 
Hounslow Action 
for Youth Hanworth   15,000 
Torbay Youth Trust Torquay   15,000 
The Separated Child 
Foundation Wimbledon   15,000 
Gospel Oak Action 
Link Youth Club London   15,000 
Fumble Sheffield   15,000 
Fun 4 Young People Bedford   15,000 
Crown and Manor Club,
Hoxton London   15,000 
Heart and Sound Dunfermline   15,000 
The Parasol Project Oxford   15,000 
Elgin Youth 
Development Group Elgin   15,000 
Kool Carers 
South East Ltd Welham Green   15,000 
Mosaic LGBT+ 
Young Persons' Trust London   15,000 
Woodhouse Eaves 
Scout Group Loughborough   15,000 
Community First Devizes   15,000 
Harrow Club London   15,000 
Kidz Klub 
Brighton & Hove Brighton   15,000 
Love, Amelia Sunderland   15,000 
FAST London London   15,000 
SeeSaw Oxford   15,000 
Children's Discovery Centre 
East London London   15,000 
Run With It Hull   15,000 
Excelsior Trust Kings Lynn   15,000 
Leaders in Community London   15,000 
Achieve More! Scotland East Kilbride   15,000 
Conflict Resolution 
Education in Sheffield 
Schools Training Sheffield   15,000 

Garfield Weston Foundation  73



Grow Sheffield   15,000  
KEEN London Greater London   15,000  
Mission Initiative  
Newcastle East Newcastle upon Tyne   15,000  
Moving On Durham Framwellgate Moor   10,000  
Acton Play Projects and 
Leisure Events  Acton   10,000  
Proton Foundation Markfield   10,000  
Grimethorpe Activity 
Zone Grimethorpe   10,000  
Man&Boy  Kingston 
 upon Thames   10,000  
Shalom Youth Project Grimsby   10,000  
Sir Thomas Lipton 
Foundation Selkirk   10,000  
The Attic SCIO Dundee   10,000  
6th/8th Dundee Boys Brigade 
(Lochee Parish Church) Dundee   10,000  
Wolvercote Young 
Peoples Club  Oxford   10,000  
Peer Power Youth London   10,000  
CHIPS Hertford   10,000  
Electric Storm Youth Ltd Lancing   10,000  
Potential Kids Hatfield   10,000  
Newton Boys and 
Girls Clubs Newton-le-Willows   10,000  
Canaan Project London   10,000  
Wiston Lodge Biggar   10,000  
Relational Hub Littlehampton   10,000  
Rising Stars Young 
People Service CIO Aston   10,000  
Redditch Wheels Project Redditch   10,000  
28th/61st Wigston 
Scout Group Wigston   10,000  
Pontarddulais Town Juniors 
Football Club Pontarddulais   10,000  
Young Bristol Bristol   10,000  
30th Abingdon (Baptist) 
Scout Group Abingdon   10,000  
BYHP (Supporting Young 
People in Housing Need) Banbury   10,000  
Just Kidding London   10,000  
The Kite Trust  Ely   10,000  
Dundee Gymnastics 
Club 2k Dundee   10,000  
SALTO Gymnastics Charitable 
Foundation Ltd Luton   10,000 * 
10 Count Boxing 
Gym CIO Stoke-on-Trent   10,000  
1st Stonesfield Scouts Witney   10,000  
Love Squared Bristol   10,000  
Younger People with Dementia 
(Berkshire) CIO Wokingham   10,000  
Down Syndrome 
Development Trust  Seaford   10,000  
The Bank of Dreams 
and Nightmares Bridport   10,000  
Baraka Community 
Association  London   10,000  
Holy Family Youth Centre Belfast   10,000 *

Leigh on Mendip 
Recreation Field 
Management Committee Radstock   10,000  
Hackney Play Association London   10,000  
Space 2 Be Me Maidstone   10,000  
St Georges (Hanworth) 
Youth Club Feltham   10,000  
The Margam Youth Activities 
Leisure Centre  Port Talbot   10,000  
Burnmoor 1st Scout 
Group Durham     8,000 * 
The Juno Project Polegate     8,000  
Ignite Life Kingswood     7,500  
1st Marske & New Marske 
Barn Owls Scout Group Marske-by-the-Sea     7,500 * 
Urban Uprising Edinburgh     7,500  
Selby and District Scouts Selby     7,500  
Fressingfield Playing 
Field  Eye     7,500  
Let's Play Project Banbury     7,500  
IMO Charity Blackburn     6,500  
Kids Kabin Newcastle 
 upon Tyne     6,500  
Shropshire Bookfest Shrewsbury     6,000  
Teen Action London     5,000  
1st Wormley Scout and 
Guide Group Broxbourne     5,000  
Hall Green Youth Solihull     5,000  
Rubygirl Ltd – 
Ruff and Ruby Stoke-on-Trent     5,000  
Let Us Play  Wolverhampton     5,000  
Sandmartins Activity 
Club CIO Wareham     5,000  
Bourne End Junior 
Sports Club  Bourne End     5,000 * 
St Peter's Children and Young 
People's Activities Group  London     5,000  
Hornchurch Unit of the 
Sea Cadet Corps Hornchurch     5,000  
Corbridge Youth Initiative Corbridge     5,000  
Boys' and Girls' Clubs 
of Wales Bridgend     5,000  
Pentabus Arts Ltd Bromfield     5,000  
Salford Foundation Salford     5,000  
The Children's 
Foundation Ltd Newcastle upon Tyne     5,000  
The Exodus Project Barnsley     5,000  
Solidarity Sports London     5,000  
Chapter2 Reading     5,000  
Ride2Success Preston     5,000  
Totnes Rural Area Youth 
Engagement Project Totnes     5,000  
Fleet Phoenix  Fleet     5,000  
Belfast Eagle Sea Cadets Belfast     5,000  
eXp – Experiencing 
Faith in Cowal Dunoon     5,000  
Just Kidz London London     5,000  
South Manchester Down Syndrome 
Support Group  Manchester     5,000  
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Southend-on-Sea Unit 312 
Of The Sea Cadet Corps  Westcliff-on-Sea     5,000  
Lincolnshire Youth 
Mission Ltd Lincoln     5,000  
Young People Count York     5,000  
Youth Impact Campbeltown     5,000  
Greenock and District 
Scout Council Greenock     3,500  
Edinburgh University Childrens 
Holiday Venture Edinburgh     3,500  
Active Hope Ltd Warrington     3,000  
Articulate Brighton     3,000  
Stepping Stones Trowbridge     3,000 * 
1st Great Ayton 
Scout Group Middlesbrough     3,000  
Voices for life Colerne     3,000  
1st Clifton (St Annes) 
Scout Group  Salford     3,000  
Hunslet Rugby 
Foundation Leeds     3,000  
The Connections 
Bus Project Cambridge     3,000 * 
Congresbury Scouts 
and Guides Bristol     3,000  
Hove and Adur Sea 
Cadet Unit Hove     2,500  
Jigsaw Youth Club Nottingham     2,500  
The 11th Eastleigh (North 
Stoneham) Scout Group Eastleigh     2,500  
1st Dromore Scout Group Dromore     2,500  
Tin Can Camp London     2,000  
Driffield And District Skate 
and BMX Park Ltd Driffield     2,000  
1st Fremington 
Scout Group Barnstaple     1,000  
1st Thaxted-Carver 
Scout Group Saffron Walden     1,000  
7th Batley (St Andrew's) 
Scout Group Batley     1,000  
Newhaven Youth 
For Christ Seaford     1,000  
Total for Youth 1,807,000
(Total number of grants: 165)

Total grants of £20,000 and less £13,460,008
Total grants over £20,000 £77,648,850

Total grants  £91,138,858
Total number of grants: 2,147
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